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HIGHLIGHTS

Sales up 7.6% 1o £74 O millon 2011: £68 8 milion)
with strong international brands growth of 11% to
£22 0 milion 2011: £197 milion)

Licensing income up 11% to £1.59 million (2011:
£1.44 milion) and new licence agreements signed
with Portmeinon (tableware), Brink & Campman (rugs)
and others

Operating profits before exceptional gain up 24% to
£6.56 milion 2011. £4 47 milion)

Earnings per share up 26% to 6.76p (2011. 5.36p)

Final dividend up 25% to 1 00p per share (2011.
0.80p) gving a total dividend of 1.20p per share
(2011: 0.95p)

PAGES PAGES
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Extending our reach Stretching our

brands

PAGES

06-0r

Broadening
our range
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capability
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MIDDLE EAST

UsA

+4%

$8 78m

S AMERICA

+14%

£0 20m

SHANGHA}
SCANDINAVIA
+15%
€2 00m
E EURQPE

+22%

£210m

W EURQPE

+£§BCJ/O MIDDLE EAST

+ 19925%
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=X TENDING

—ACH

FAR EAST

+22%

£2 85m

AUSTRALIA

+5%

£077m

JOHN SACH
Chief Executive

Building on the substantial growth
potential in the North American,
European and Rest of World markets.

Q: How big an opportunity are intemational markets?

JOHN: International markets offer a huge opportunity Our
products ars already sold in 75 countnies but only in recent
years has Walker Greenbank been in a financial position to fully
focus on these growth opportunies We now have the balance
sheet strength to achieve our ambitions in nternational markets,
at a tme when our products continue to grow in populanty
globally The hentage and design excellence of our brands
combined with our UK manufacturing capability are all of
considerable appeal to both emerging and established
international markets

Q: How does Walker Greenbank achieve
international sales?

JOHN, We have an extensive network of agents and
distnbutors around the world and work closely with them
Recently, in China we were very closely involved in helping
our distribution partner open a major showroom in Shenzhen
to showcase our wallpapers, fabncs and lifestyle products
We also have our own showrooms in New York and Pans
The Iicensing of our brands for lifestyle products is another
important means to grow overseas income Last year our
licensees In Japan were highly successful, benefiting from
Moms & Co’s 150th anniversary

Q: Which intermational markets offer the most
exciting growth opportunities?

JOHN: Established markets offer us considerable potential, n
part dependent on the economic cycle The US 1s of particular
nterest to us, in that we already have a presence thers and it’s

a natural market for our products, but perhaps the most exciing
opportunties for us e n the emerging markets for luxury intenior
goods where we have seen rapid growth in Eastemn Europe, the
Far East, the Middle East and South Amernca
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Q&

S I RETCHING
OUR
SRANDS

Stretching our Brands into new market
positions including award winning
designs from Clarissa Hulse and
Melissa White as well as the launch

of our new brand Scion.
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DAVID SMALLRIDGE
Managing Director Brands

-—

Q: Tell us more about your collaborations with
leading iIndependent designers.

DAVID: We have superb in-house designers but the strong
identihies of all of our brands mean that they are also ideally
pestitioned for collaborations with leading independent
designers In the past year, Harlequin's Kalhantti collection by
Clanssa Hulse and Melissa White's Arden collection for Zoffany
have both enjoyed considerable acctaim from customers and
commentators alike

Q: Harlequm’s Momentum collection has been a huge
success What does t mean for Walker Greenbank?

DAVID: The launch of Momentum was one of the most
exciting developments at Harleguin dunng 2011 It's a

stunning compilation of contemporary weaves and special
effect wallpapers in a boutique hotel style that works extremely
well In both home and commercial intenors The sirength of the
appeal of Momentum 1s such that it has set new sales records
for Walker Greenbank, in the UK and overseas

Q: The Scion brand was launched in February 2012
What's its target market?

DAVID: Scion 1s a young, contemporary brand that combines
fresh new styling with a particular focus on value Scilonisina
completely new part of the market for Walker Greenbank, so i1s
highly complementary to the Company’s other brands We've
been really pleased with the success of the Scion launch and
the high level of interest from potential customers

Q: Licensing your brands has created a wide range
of products but are you increasing your own product
Iines too?

DAVID: Alongside our ever-expanding kcensing arrangements
for the Sanderson, Momis & Co and Harlequin brands we have
also extended our own product range to include cushions and
will be launching a tnmmings range for Harleguin in the summer
of 2012
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Q: Tableware I1s a key part of any intenor. Tell us
about Sanderson’s tableware collections

VICTORIA: We signed a licensing deal last year with
Portmeinon, a market leader in innovative tableware So far,
they have launched two delightful tableware ranges based on
contrasting Sanderson designs  Fifi s a 1950s-inspired retro
collection whereas Porcelan Garden i1s classically inspired
featunng delicate flowers, birds and butterfles

Q: Tell us more about Harlequin’s licensing
arrangement in rugs

ALISON: This icensing arrangement 1s with Brink & Campman,
a prestige rug maker in the Netherands We were really pleased
with their launch in February of a stunning collection of 20
Harleguin rugs in nine different designs They are curmrently
developing ranges for the Sanderson and Scion brands

Rugs are just one of a wide range of Iifestyle products that
we're developing through licensing arangements to
complement our wallpapers and fabncs

Q: How did Moms & Co. come to work with Barbour?

VICTORIA: Barbour and Moms & Co are both quintessential UK
brands so they make a perfect partnership lt's also really excring
because in addiion to Moms & Co's Strawberry Thref and
Mangold fabncs being used for the inings of Barbour jackets, the
fabncs will also be ussed to create a range of Barbour handbags

Q: Lighting 1s a new area of licensing for Harlequin.
Tell us more.

ALISON: Harlequin's established identity as a successful
contemporary brand brings huge potential for its use in Ifestyle
products Our icensing partnership with Elstead Lighting, a UK
company with worldwide distnbution, was a particularly exciting
development The introduction of a stylish collection of modern
table and floor lamps, wall ights and chandeliers, designed by
Harlequin and ncorporating the brands fabnic In its shades,
reflects both the strength and breadth of the brand
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SOAD
OL
SANGE

We are developing our lifestyle
product range by exploiting
the brands potential to grow
licence opportunities.

NING

VICTORIA BLAIR (TOP)
Marketing diractor for Sanderson
Morns & Co and Zoftany

ALISON GORE (BOTTOM)
Marketing director for Harlequin
and Scon
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We continue to invest in developing
new techniques to broaden our offering
to our customers. A key focus has been
the investment in digital printing for both
fabrics and wallpapers.
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INCREASING
O U Mandfactunng manaing dirocto
SABILITY

Q: Investment in the wallpaper factory has included
a scatter machine. What new effects does it bnng?

BARRY: The scatter machine at the wallpaper factory in
Loughborough adds glass beads and other particles to
wallpaper and by combining this process with our different
printing techniques we can create some highly indiviciual
textural effects Harequir's highly successful Momentum
caollection features wallpapers produced on the scatter
machine, which has also been used to create some superb
wallpapears for many of our third party customers

Q: Tell us more about the investment in digital prnting

BARRY We've been bulding our digital pnnting capacity
over the last four years, initially at the fabnc printing factory

i Lancaster and more recently at the wallpaper factory in
Loughborough We now have four digital printers in Lancaster
and one in Loughborough

Eigital prnting allows very large image sizes 1o be created

and very short runs to be printed economically We've
praduced some stunningly vibrant fabnc pnnts in Clanssa
Hulse's Kalliarthi collection for Harlequin using digrtal printing
as well as for both existing and new third party customers at
home and overseas We also recently launched our first digitally
pnnted wallpaper for Zoffany's Arden collection, which features
a stylised Elizabethan country scena in a huge repeat size

Q: Screen pnnting Is a traditional technique.
Are you still nvesting In it?

BARRY: Conventonal flatbed and rotary screen rermain very
attractive methods for fabne pnnting and dunng the past year
we have substantially extended our flatbed capability at our
Lancaster factory to allow us to print a wider range of products
By continuing to invest in both factories, we am to offer all our
customers the broadest possible range of traditional and
innovative pnnting technigues and design opportunities
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SEOPL

We provide value, quality and
fulfilment to our customers.
Our focus is on striving for
excellence and ensuring we
deliver on our promises. As

a professional organisation,
we believe that people make
the difference.

Our strength comes from
attracting and retaining the
right people by providing a
challenging and rewarding
environment. We also provide
ample opportunities for
professional growth

and development,

“Next day delivery Is really
important and it's our job
to make 1t happen.”

Elise Bartow, Customer Services
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“It's great to see the
technology adapting to
customer requirements ”
Peter Nisld, Pnnt Technician

“The archive provides

an inspirational resource
of historical textiles and
artwork for us as a
design team.”

Clare Hart, Designer

“| love the fact that | am
able to express myself
through my ideas.”
Louse Draper, Senior Designer
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OUR YEAR IN REVIEW

It has been a very busy year which

has seen numerous initiatives focused
on extending the range and reach of the
Group’s brands and the capability

of manufacturing.

FEBRUARY 2012

Launch of Sanderson
designs by Portmeirion
and Bluepnnt
collections

Two collections of tableware
designed by Portmemnon, Fifi,
inspired by 1950s designs
and mora classical, Porcelain
Garden Bluepnnt designed
a range of stationery, bags
and tinware also nspired by
Porcelan Garden

JANUARY 2012

Opening of major
showroom In
Shenzhen, China

A collaboration with our Chinese
distnbutor to open a 560 sgm
showrcom on two floors, located
In the design distnct of Shenzhen
Stocked with wallpapers and
fabncs from the Group's brands
together with an extensive range
of the lifestyle products

FEBRUARY 2012

Launch of Scion brand
to target new market
segment

The brand name 'Scion’

nspired by the dictionary
definiion ‘a young shoot or
twig' or ‘a descendant of a
notable farnify or one with a long
Ineage' 1s amed at asprational
and fashion-aware customaers
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MARCH 2011 SEPTEMBER 2011
Moms & Co. Harlequin launches
anniversary Clarissa Hulse
collection
Moms & Co celebrated its 150th
anniversary dunng 2011 following Clarissa Hulse’s distnct
Sanderson's 150th n 2010 This mspred by botanical mé",ﬁ:;w:'
was celebrated by the extensive unrnistakable n the Haﬂequw‘w
launch of “The Archive Callection’ collscton, Kallanthi h utlises
of pnnts, wallpapers, weaves tha digital prntin abil
and embroidenes ot Stoncto & Barack, the
Group's fabnc printing business
SEPTEMBER 2011
Launch of Harlequin
hghting
A stylish ¢ollection of modern
table and floor lamps, wall Ights
and chandeliers designed by
Harlequin and Blstead Lighting
Hampshire based Elstead
distnbute the ights through major
department stores, independent
lighting retalers and existing
Harlequin sales channgls
FEBRUARY 2012 FEBRUARY 2012
Launch of Harlequin First wallpaper
rug collection by digital printer used
Brink & Campman to produce Melissa
White wallpaper
The launch of nine designs In
sinking colour options  The rugs The new collection from Zoffany,
ara promoted globally through Arden, has utlised the digrtal
Bnnk & Campman's distnbution pnnting techrigue and features
base and also through Harlequin's a stylised Elizabethan country
existing customers Including scene In a huge repeat

John Lews n the UK.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

TERRY STANNARD
CHAIRMAN

We remain focused on
opportunities to develop

our iNnternational business,
where our brand assets and
UK manufacturing base bring
significant potential to build
ON our strong position IN
established markets.

Qur Harlequin showroom at
Chelsea Harbour, London
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Overview

The year to 31 January 2012 was an excellent year dunng which
we contnued to explort the potental of our brands, both in the UK
and intermationally

Sales for the year grew by 7 6% to £74 0 million with all segments of tha
Group achieving year on year growth leading to an increase of 24% in
operating profit before exceptional tems at £5 56 millon

Our Brand sales grew by 7 3% to £57 4 million with international sales
growing strongly by 11% to £22 0 milion In our largest markat, the UK,
sales grew by 4 6% 1o £33 8 milion Our global licence Income grew
11%, led by Japan and our UK bed linen licenses

Our UK manufactunng operations had another successful year with
third party sales growing by 8 8% helped by internationaf sales growth
of 32% as existing customers developed ther ranges and new
customers were attracted by our nnovative pnnting technigues

These results demonstrate further progress towards our vision of
creating a highly profitable mtermational fuxury brands group We have
buit strong market posttions in our core sectors of wallpaper and fabncs
and our brands have stretched into kifestyle categones such as rugs,
tableware and ighting through our worldwide licence partners

Financuals

Overall sales increased 76% to £74 0 milion (2011 £68 8 milkon} The
operatng profit for the year was up 24% to £5 56 milion (2011 £4 47
millon before an exceptional gain of £0 50 milion from a loss of profits
clam) Profit before tax grew 8 7% to £4 89 milkon (2011 £4 46 milion}
The profit after tax increased 26% to £3 83 milion (2011 £3 03 miflion)

Eamings per share were 6 76p (2011 5 36p) a growth of 26%

The cash inflow from operatng actvities was £4 28 milion (2011 £4 26
milion), reflecting strong operating profits partially offset by a continued
significant investment In new product The Group's net indebtedness at
the year end reduced to £0 87 milion (2011 £1 82 million)

Dividend

Dunng the year, the Group has paid a final dmdend for the year to

31 January 2011 of 0 80p per share and an intenm dvidend of O 20p
per share The Drrectors recommend the payment of a final dvmdend of
100p per share {2011 0 80p) which wili be payable on 10 August 2012
1o shareholders on the register on 13 July 2012 This bnngs the total
dradend for the year to 1 20p per share (2011 0 95p} an increase of 26%

People
On behalf of the Beard, | wouid like to thank all of our management and
employess for their contnbution to an extremely successful year

Outlook

We remain focusad on opportunites to develop our ntemational
business, where our brand assets and UK manufactunng bass bring
significant potential to buid on our strong positon In established markets

After three months of the current year Brand sales are 5% ahead of the
same penod last year We are confident of delivering a positive cutcome
for the year

TERRY STANNARD
NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN
15 MAY 2012

Our Sanderson and Zoffany showroom
at Chetsea Harbour, London
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

JOHN SACH
GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Our ongoing investment in
oroduct design, marketing,
customer service and
manufacturing capability

has helped us oeliver excellent
results during the year and it

IS particularly pleasing that
39% of brand sales are

now international.

Our opening of the Shenzhen
showroom in China
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Strategy

I am pleased to report that the Group continues to make significant

prograss with the implementation of its strategy, which compnses
International expansion - to focus on the distnbution and marketing
of our brands in the European and North Amencan markets where
we see significant potential to grow our market share and to invest in
the exciting growth opportunities N other international markets,

- Market penetration — to continue to grow our brands in the UK and
mtemationally through extension of market positions,

- Liestyle product extension — to profit from the global recognition
of the Group's hentage brands, Sanderson and Morns & Co, and
the contemporary design excelence of the Harlequin brand, by
extending the product range and exploiting the product kcensing
opportunmes,

- Extending manufactunng capabity - to continue to invest in the
latest pnnting techniques and 1o promote the considerable
opportuniies of being a qualty UK manutacturer, and

- Acgquisitions — 1o continue to evaluate acquistion opportuniies that
fit with our current brand portfolio with the objective of further
advancing our eamings growth

Overview
| am extremely pleased to report that we have continued to make
pregress on our record year last year with further growin in sales
and profits

Qur Brands have benefitad from the continued investment in design,
marketing and product launch and have Increased sales 4 6% to

£33 8 milion n what has been a challenging UK market. Intemationally
the Brands sales have grown 11% to £22 0 million

Europe as a whole has grown 10%, led by strong growth of 22% in
Eastern Europe and 15% in Scandinava particularty dnven by Russia
and Sweden Despite the Euro zone difficuthes trading was restient with
sales growth of 6 2% 1In Western Europe and encouragingly our own
business In France has grown 23% following showroom investment
and increased management focus

Our business In the US 1s showing signs of mprovement and 1s shghtly
up for tha year as a whole in reportable currency and up 4 4% n local
currency having been flat at the half year

Following a number of business iniatives, cur cther intemational
markats have grown 28% to £5 64 millon This was led by growth in
the Middle East of 105%, helped by a significant hotel contract in Dubay,
and growth of 22% in the Far East with the sigrificant Moms & Co
launch in the year helping Japan grow sales 46% and growth of 13%

in China where our distnibutor has recently opened a showroom in
Shenzhen predominatsly dedicated to our brands

Gilobal Licensing ncome has grown 11% to £1 59 mihon with, both UK
and overseas growing strongly In the UK our established bed lnen
lcensee, Badeck, achieved significant growth Amaongst our averseas
licensees, our Japaness kcensees did particularty well benefitng from the
Moms & Co 150th anniversary and products being launched into China
The uxury and hentage nature of the Group's brands has led to the
signing of new licence amangements such as Portmenon tableware,
Bluepnnt statonery, Blstead Lighting and Bink & Carnpman rugs

Manutactunng has had another successful year The actraty levels in
the second half of the year reduced from the high levels seen in the first
half, when manufactunng benefited from customers restocking In the
early months Annual sales were flat at £28 7 milion with a small
improvement in profitability

The Brands

QCur commitment to invest in the strength and depth of our product
range and our attertion to customer senvice has ensured ancther
successful year for our four intencr furmishings brands that make up
the Brands segment.

In March 2012 a new brand, Scion, was launched which 1s a young,
contemporary brand amed at aspiratonal and fashion aware customers
and stretches the reach of our brands Into new markst areas

The Brands achieved growth in sales of 7 3% over last year to

£57 4 milion The Brands’ operating profits before exceptional tems
grew 14% to £5 37 mifion with contnued substantial investment in
product and marketing

Brands UK
Harlequin

Harlequin has grown its overall sales 9 2% over the same penod last
year to £22 4 millon, mantaning its position as the UK's leading
mid-market contemporary brand The growth has been driven by
strong ntemational sales ied by particularly strong growth in the Far
East, Middle East and Sweden Harlequin launched an innovative
collection with Clanssa Hulse dunng the year and reverues exceeded
expectations Harlequin contnues to develop its licensing incorme and
launched a range of ighting i conjunction with Elstead Lighting

Wa were particularly pleased with the performance of Harlequin's
Momentum collection, which has becoma the brand’s bggest seling
range n recent years

Qur refurbished showroom
irn Rue de Mal, Pans
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW conminued

Arthur Sanderson & Sons incorporating the
Morns & Co brand

There has been particular nvestment both in product and marketing
dunng the 150th annrersary year of Moms & Co which was marked

by special UK exhibitons at several key Moms houses including
Wightwick Manor, Standen and Red Houss and unique events in over
20 nternatonal markets including major seminars as far afield as Tokye
and Los Angetes These, and other actvties, have raised the profile of
Moms & Co and, combined with the global recognition of the Sanderson
brand, have helped increase sales by 8 2% to £19 0 millon The growth
has been drven by Intemabonal sales with particularty strong growth in
Sweden, Russia and Japan, an imporiant market for Moms & Co

Zoffany

Zoffany 1s postioned at the upper end of tha premium market and sales
have been much more challenging in the second half Overall sales
graw by 3 3% to £810 milion, this has been supported by strong
Intematonal performance up 14 9% over last year with particularty
strong performances in Scandinavia, Russia, the Far East and the
Middle East where there were speaific contract wins

Brands Overseas
Our Overseas segment compnses our two wholly-owned subsidianes
in New York and Pans

Following two extremely challenging years In the US market, the
second half of the year has shown signs of recovery helping grow
revenues for the full year by 4 4% in local currency, but flat in reportable
currency This performance has been helped by key changes to our
showroom partners (0 certain states and Investment in a new back
office In New Jersey We are committed to this market where we
remain confident about the medium-term potential

Despite challenging conditions in Western Europe, our French
distnbution business has grown 23% greatly helped by increased
management focus and investment in remodeling our Pans showroom

Manufacturing

Following an extremely strong perfarrmance last year it s pleasing
to report that our manufactunng segment has maintained both
overall revenues and profitability helped by strong third party and
intemational growth

The stnking Folla collection

was produced by the Harlequin
Design Studio and was launched
in January 2012
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Anstey

Anstey, our wallpaper pnnting business, grew overall sales by 3 5% to
£13 5 millon Third party sales in the UK were up 11% and third party
export sales were up 32% Intemal sales to our own brands wera down
due to the tming and volume of product launches

The nvestment made in a scatter maching In the first half of the year

has gven us the capability to add glass beads and other partcies to
wallpaper offering our customers a wider range of excibng new textured
effects This was commissionad In the second half and Harlequin led the
way with the recert launch of the Momentum collecton utiising this
technique Third party customers are also progressing with design
developments We continue to mvest and to innovate our manufactunng
capabilty and commissioned our first digital printer earty this year

Standfast

Standfast, our fabne pnnting factory, had a small decline in overall
annual sales of 3 7% to £15 2 millon Third party sales grew 5 8% with
axport sales growing strongly, by 32%, and UK sales growing 19%
Sales to our own brands declined 16% following a very strong launch
of new pnnt collections last year

Standfast continues to INvest In dgital printing due to Increasing
demand and commissioned its fourth machne dunng the year Digttal
pnnters allow customers the flexibility of high value, short pnnt runs and
large scale designs Further significant investrment in digital pnnting wall
continue to be made In order to satisfy the demand for this type of
product There was a significant nvestment in the capacity and
extension of the flatbed pnnting capabiiity dunng the year

Summary

Our ongoing investment in product design, marketing, customer
service and manufactunng capability has helped us deliver excellent
results dunng the year and it 1s particularty pleasing that 39% of our
brand sales are now international

We intend to continue to explott our brand assets intematonally and
remain confident of continued progress dunng the current year
and beyond

JOHN SACH
GROUF CHIEF EXECUTIVE
15 MAY 2012

The Zoffany Akita Weave and
Vinyl Wallpaper collections
which take therr inspiration
from Japanese craftwork




20

WALKER GREENBANK PLC
Annual Report and Accounts 2012

FINANCIAL REVIEW

income Statement and Exceptional ltems

The Charman'’s Statement and Chief Executive’s Review provide an
analysis of the key factors impaciing the revenue and operating profit.

In additon to the mformation on our brands and producton faciites
included n these reports, the Group has Included in note 4 of these
Consolidated Financial Statements further nformation on our segments

Exceptional tems are both matenal and ther nature 1s sufficient

o warrant separate disclosure and dentfication There were o
excaptional terns in the year but dunng the previous year a full and finad
payment of £500,000 was receved for an insurance settlement ‘loss of
profits clam' which arose from the disruption to collection launches In
2009 as a consequence of the loss of marksting material products
held at a thwd party’s premuses which were destroyed in a fire in
January 2009

Interest

The net intarest charge for the year was £254,000 (2011 £146,000)
ncluding amortisation of debt Issue costs capitalised Included in the
previcus year was an interest receipt of £86,000 as a consequence of
a successful Fleming clam for the recovery of VAT

Net Defined Benefit Pension
The charge dunng the year was £407,000 (2011 £364,000) There was
a net settlement gan last year ansing from the two remaining deferred

ALAN DIX members of the Walker Gresnbank Senior Management Scheme
GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR accepting enhanced transfer values and the sffectve closure of
that scheme
Current Taxation

There is a small corporation tax charge of £15,000 ansing from
withhelding tax suffered on overseas licence ncome and a pnor year
adjustment for overseas tax of £36,000

Deferred Taxation

Due to the substantial brought forward UK comporation tax losses

{£12 6 mifion), the Group doses not anticpate paying UK corporation tax
In the iImmedate future However, as the majonty of the corporation tax
losses have now bean recognisad as a deferred tax asset, in the current
and future years there will be a deferred tax charge in the Income
Statermert untl such tme as the losses have bean fully utlised at

which point the Group will incur and pay UK corporation tax.

The Group alsc continues to recognise the deferred tax asset ansing
from the pension defict, Although the pension deficit has increased
dunng the year thera has been a small decrease In the associated
deferred tax asset due to the reducton in the tax rate to 25% which
has been recognised in the Staterment of Comprehensive Income

Earnings per share {‘EPS’)
The basic and diuted EPS was 6 76p {2011 5 36p)

Operating Cash Flow and Net Debt

The Group generated net cash inflow from operating actvities dunng
the year of £4,282,000 (2011 £4,260,000) reflecting the increased
ravenues, operating profits and contrued nvestment in product.

The Group paid net interest of £230,000 (2011 £121,000), last year
benefited from interest on a VAT refund by HMRC in respect of expenses
incurred on the 1ssue of shares in eariier years Capital expenditure was
£2,538,000 (2011 £2,453,000) The depreciation and amortisaton
charge dunng the penod was £1,853,000 (2011 £1,738,000) The Group
will continue to Invest in the Manufactunng facihes and 1s part way
through a major nvestment in a new IT system for the Brands Capital
expenditure will remain high dunng the next 12 months
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The Group made additional payments to the Pension schemes of
£1,022,000 (2011 £1,038,000) to reduce the deficit, part of the ongoing
planned reduction, along with £436,000 (2011 £322,000) of regular
contnbutions 1o fund scheme expenses

Income tax and NI of £348,000 that arose on the vesting of an LTIP
award was paid dunng the year

Net debt in the Group has reduced by £1,150,000 to £667,000 {2011
£1,817,000) representing gearing of 2 9% {2011 8 5%} The average
tevel of debt dunng the year 1s higher due to the timing and seasonality
of revenues and Investment in product

The Group utises faciities provided by Barclays Bank Pic Therers a
term property faciity of £2,200,000 (2011 £2,600,000} at the year end
expinng in Juty 2017 There 1s also a faciity inked to working caprtal which
allews the Group 1o more effectively manage seasonal fuctuabons in
working capital This faciity was renewsd in March 2010 for a further
three year term expnng in July 2013 The borrowings at the end of the
year under the working capital factity were £680,000 (2011 £1,161,000),
representing headroom of £11,257,000 2011 £10,559,000) The
headroom 1s set out below

Utibsation Avatability

£000 £000
Property 2,184 2,200
inventory - 2,500
Recavables 680 7.224
2,864 11,924
Less Cash and cash eguivalents (2,197)
Net Debt 667 (667)
Headroom 11,257

The total faciites have a current imit of £16 50 mullion (2011
£16 50 miflion)

All of the Group bank facilites remain secured by first fixed and floating
charges over the Group's assets

Pension Deficit

The pension deficit has increased this year The key factors affecting the
movernent in the deficit have been contibutions from the Company to
reduce the defict; an increase In the liabilites of the scheme ansing from
lower discount rates but an increase in scherne assets reflecting the
improvement N bond values The impact of these factors 1s shown

as follows

2012

£000
Deficit at beginning of period (8,742)
Scheme expenses (488)
interest cost (2,565}
Expected return on plan assets 2,648
Contributions 1,458
Actuarnal gain on scheme assets 5,460
Actuanal losses from the change in discount factor (6,864)
Gross deficit at the end of the year (7,095)

Long-Term Incentive Plan

There has been a new award of shares dunng the year under the
Long-Term Incentive Plan ('LTIP') with vesting conditions based on Total
Shareholder Retum with an adiusted Profit before Tax floor There has
been a charge of £414,000 {2011 £697,000} in the Income Staternent
relating to LTIP awards The charge last year was high as the award
rmade in May 2007 fully vested in May 2011 as the top range of the
financial target of profit before tax had been met. Accruals made up to
January 2010 were based on achievement of the lowest rangse of the
financial target which reflectad internal projectons at that tme

Dividends

Dunng the year, the Group has pad a final dvidend for the year to

31 January 2011 of 0 80p per share and an intenm dmdend of 0 20p
per share The Drrectors recommend the payment of a final dvidend
of 100p per share (2011 0 80p) which wall be payable on 10 August
2012 to shareholders on the regster on 13 July 2012 This bnngs the
total dmidend for the year to 1 20p per share (2011 0 85p) an increase
of 26%

Disposals
There wera no major disposals dunng the year

Going Concemn

The Dwrectors are confident, after having made appropnate enquines
that the Group and Company have adequate resources to continue
trading for the foreseeable future For this reason they continue to adopt
the going concem basis In prepanng the financial statements

Foreign Currency Risk

All foreign currencies are bought and sold centrally on behalf of the
Group Regular reviews take place of the foreign currency cash flows
and unmatched exposures are coverad by forward contracts wherever
economecally practical Working caprtal exposures are hedged using
currency swaps

The Group does not trade in financial instruments and hedges are

used for highly probable future cash flows and to hedge working

capital exposures There is a hedgng hability of £50,000 (2011 £63,000
asset) at the end of the year in relation to US dollar and Japanese yen
forward contracts

There s an asset of £54,000 ansing from US dollar swaps used to
hedge working capital exposures

Credit Risk

The Group ne longer seeks credit Insurance as this 1S not a commercial
solution to reducing credit nsk The Board reviews the internal crecit
lirmuts of all mayor customers and reviews the credrt nsk regularly The
aging profile of trade debtors shows that payments from customers
are close to terms however there have beean specific expenses dunng
the year The current economic ermronment creates a significant level
of nsk and in addrtion to speciic provisioning, a provision has been
required of £314,000 Gi1 £2 00) which s a collectve
assessment of the n:

ALAN DIX
GRQUP FINANCE DIRECTOR
15 MAY 2012
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DIRECTORS AND ADVISERS

Directors Advisers
Terry Stannard {62) Stockbrokers and Advisers
Non-executve Chairman (A, R, N) Seymour Prerce Ltd
Terry joined the Board as a Non-executive Director in 20 QldBaly
September 2007 and became Non-executive Chairman London EC4AM 7EN
on 31 January 20038 He has particular expertise in
IMermational brand-based businessas and his executive Auditors
career included senior rotes at Unrted Biscurts and the PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
postions of Chief Executive of Unig pic and Terranova 10 Bricket Road
Foods plc Since 2001, he has focused on non-aexecutve St Albans
appointments at both quoted and ungucted businesses Hearts AL1 3JX
Henis currently Non-executive Chaimnan of Antler Ltd and
TSC Food Group Ltd and holds Non-executive Director Tax Advisers
roles at Bradford & Sons Ltd, Macphie of Glenbervie Ltd BDQ Stay Hayward LLP
55 Baker Street
Fiona Goldsmith (45) London W1U 7EU

Non-executive Director (A, R, N)
Fiona jomned the Board as a Non-executive Director in
December 2008 She s a Chartered Accountant who

Public Relations
Buchanan Commurications Ltd

started her career with KPMG, where for nine years she 107 Cheapside
focused on the retail and leisure sectors In vanous roles London EC2V 6DN
She then moved to First Choice Holdays plc, where she
became Eurcpean Finance Director From 2004 until Solicitors
October 2008 she was Finance Director of Land Securties DLA Piper
Tnlium, a dwvision of Land Secunties Group plc Princes Exchange
Princes Square
John Sach {56) Leeds LS1 4BY
Chief Executive Officer
John joined the Group in 1894 as Group Financial Registrars
Controller and was appointed to the Board as Group Capita Registrars
Finance Drrector in 1999 He was appointed Chief Northern House
Executive Officer in May 2004 Woodsorme Park
Fenay Bndge
David Smalindge (56) Huddersfield
Executive Director Woest Yorkshire HDB OLA
Dawid joined the Group In 2002 with a broad based
axpenance as a Managing Director In a vansty of consumer Bankers
product businesses He was appointed to the Board in Barciay’s Commercral Bank
December 2004 tollowing his appointment as Managing Ashton House
Director of the Group's four man fabine and wallcovenng 497 Sibury Boulevard
brands, Harlegquin, Sanderson, Moms & Co and Zoffany Mitton Keynes MK9 21D
Alan Dix (53)
Group Finance Director

In Juty 2005, Alan Dix was appointed Group Financs
Director He 1s 2 Chartered Accountant with expenence from
a broad range ot ndustnes

A — Audit Comrrittee
R - Remuneraton Committes
N —Nominatons Committes
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Drrectors submit their Annual Report together with the
audrted financial statements of the Cornpany and its subsidiary
undertakings ('the Group') for the year ended 31 January 2012

Principal activities, Business Review and future
developments

The prncipal actvities of the Group are the design, manufacture,
marksting and distnbutien of wallcovenngs, fumishing fabrics and
associated products for the consumer market

A review of actvities and the future developments of the Group are
given in the Chief Executive's Review on page 18, which, taken with
the Chaimman’s Statermant on page 14, the Financial Review on
page 20 and the other information in the Report of the Directors,
represents the Group's Business Review and are incorporated mnto
s report by reference

The Directors do not expect there to be any significant change n
the pnncipal activities of the Group in the foresesable future

Group result
The profit before taxation amounted to £4,894,000 2011
£4,462,000)

The Directors recommend payment of a final ordinary dvidend

of 10p per share, amounting to £570,000 [excluding dividends

on freasury shares and shares held by the employes berefit trust)
which wil be recognised in the financial staternents for the following
year (2011 0 80p per share} An intenm dvidend of 0 20p per share
was pad dunng the year

Key Performance Indicators (‘KPI's")
The KPI's for the business are pnmanly financial

2012 2011
Sales growth/{decline) 7.6% 14%
Operating profit margin before

exceptional itoms 7.5% 6 5%
Geanng 2.9% 85%
Pansion deficit as a percentage

of shareholders’ funds 3% 32%
Eamings per share 6.76p 5 36p

Addrtional commentary and analysis of strategic objectves of the
Group are contained in the Chief Executive's Review and note 4 of
the consolidated financial statements

Business nsks
There s an ongoing process todertty, evaluate and manage the
nsks faced by the Group

The Directors have identified a number of financtal nsks for the
Group and thesa are expianed and the degree of nsk highlighted
in rote 2 of the financial statements and in the Financial Review

Twe significant business nsks are the potential loss of the core [T
system used by the Brands and the potential loss of the central
warshousing facility in Miiton Keynes The phased implementation
of an established third party replacemant IT systern 1S underway
and will be concluded by the end of the coming financial year

The Group has miigated some of the nsks associated with a
warehouse by improving physical securty and working practices
during the year

Where commercially appropnate the Group insures aganst
financial loss caused by unforeseen events by the means of
nsurance pelicies

Rusks outsida of the cortrol af the Directars would be the impact
of an event of a global nature or a signdicant downiturn in the UK
market Whilst the frading conditions in North Amenca remain
difficult, this will affect trading of our business in North Amenca
but this business 1s not currently a significant profit contnbutor to
the overall Group

The Audit Gommittes on behalf of the Board has reviewed the
effectivenass of the intermal controls and nsk management and
no significant falings in control were found

Pensions

The Group operates defined benefit and dafined contribution
schemes n the UK and overseas for all qualifying employess
Further informaton on the schemes and detalls of the valuations
are gven In note 23 to the consolidated financial statements

Employees

The Group keeps its employees informed an matters affecting
them and on the progress of the Group by way of informal
meetings and consultation with employses’ representativas

All Group businesses apply the principles of equal opportunity

In recruitment, career progression and remuneration Disabled
persons are given full and far considerabon for employrment where
an approprata vacancy occurs, havng regard to tharr particular
aptitudes and abilmes Whenever possible, arrangements are
made for the continuing employment of persons who have become
disabled dunng service and for appropnate traning of all disabled
employses, who are given equal consideration with all other
employses in promotion and carser development

Payments to suppliers

The Group agrees terms and condions for its business transactions
with suppliers and makes payment in accordance with those terms
and conditions subject 1o the supplier meetng is oblgations The
armount of trade creditors shown in the Consolidated Balance Sheet
at 31 January 2012 represents 82 days (2011 102 days) of average
purchases dunng the year for the Group

The Company is a holding comparty and has no mearungful
equivalent of credior days

Market value of interests in land including buildings
The Dwrectors do not believe there 1s a significant difference
between the current market value of the Group's Interests in
land, including buldings, and therr carmying values In the
financial statements

Political and chantable donations
The Group has not made any pofitical donations (2011 nif)y Dunng
the year the Group made no charrtable donatons 2011 ruf)

Directors

The Board of Directors as at the date of this report and dunng the
year ended 31 January 2012 1s set out on page 22, together with
biographical details Detarls of the Directors” Service Contracts are
sat out In the Directors’ Rarmuneration Report on page 26

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (AGM') F C Goldsmith
and J D Sach will retire by rotation and being eligible will offer
themselves for re-election
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS conminuen

Directors’ share interests

The Directors in office at 31 January 2012 are set out below

The interests of the Directors and thewr familes in the shares of
the Company at the beginning and end of the financial year were
as follows

1p ordinary 1p ordinary

shares shares

31 January 31 January

2012 201

Number Number

T G Stannard 70,000 70,000
F C Goldsmith 45,000 45,000
J D Sach 1,331,105 1,093,370
D H Smalindge 729,734 559,922
AN Dix 566,334 429,535

There have been no changes in the interasts set out above
betwaen 31 January 2012 and 15 May 2012

The share pnce on 1 February 2011 was 57p and on 31 January
2012 was 51p

Long-Term Incentive Plan

The movernent in awards made under the Group’s Long-Term
Incentive Plan (LTIP’) during the year 1s shown as part of the
Directors' Remuneration Report on page 26

Directors’ interests in matenal contracts
Nona of the Directors had any matenal interest In any contract
during the year which was significant to the business of the Group

Directors’ and officers’ hability insurance
The Group maintans kability iInsurance for its Cirectors and officers

Research and development

The Group continues to invest in its products to retain and
enhance its market position Detaills of the Group’s expenditure
on collection design development costs are set outin note 14
of the financial statements

Substantial shareholdings

AL T May 2012 the Comparny 1s aware of the folowing substantial
sharehcldings In s ordinary share capital, comparatives at 5 May
2011 are shown Henderson Global Investors 13 28% (2011

16 49%), Cazenove Capital Management 8 46% (2011 2 86%),
Blackrock tnvestment Management 7 44% 2011 616%), British
Arways Pension Investment Management 3 70% (2011 370%),
Barclays Wealth 3 32% (2011 4 01%), Royal London Asset
Management 3 28% {2011 371%), TD Direct Investing 3 27%
{2011 3 94%), Willams de Broe 3 22% (2011 4 38%)

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Mesting will be held on 27 June 2012 as stated
In the Notice of Mesting separately distnbuted to shareholders

Auditors
A resolution to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the AGM

So far as each of the Directors n office at the date of this report 1s
awars, there I1s no relevant audt nformation of which the Group's
auditors are unaware Relevant nformation 1s defined as information
needed by the Group's audnors in connection with prepanng their
report Each Director has taken all the steps that they ought 1o have
taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audrt information
and to establish that the audrtors are aware of that information

By order of the Board

Cuhle

CAROQLINE GEARY
COMPANY SECRETARY
15 MAY 2012

Regstered Office
Chalfont House
Cxford Road
Denham UBS 4DX

Regstered number 61880
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report,
the Directors’ Report, the Directors’ Rermuneration Report and
the financial statements In accordance with applicable law
and regulations

Company law reguires the Directors 1o prepare financial
staterments for each financial year Under that law the Directors are
required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance
with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs’) as
adopted by the European Union, and have elected to propare the
parent Company financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under
Company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are sabsfied that they give a true and farr
view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of
the profit or loss of the Group for that penod

In prepanng those financial statements, the Directors are required to

) select suttable accounting policies and then apply them
consistertly,

(i) maks judgements and estmates that are reasonable
and prudent,

(i) state whether IFRSs as adopted by the European Unton and
applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,
subyect 1o any matenal departures disclosed and explaned
in the Group and parent Company financial statements
respectvely, and

(v} prepare the financial staterents on the going concern basis
unless it 1s Inappropnate to presume that the Company wil
continue 1IN business

The DCractors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tmea the
financial position of the Cormpany and enable thern to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Comparies Act 2006
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevenbon and detection of fraud and other imregulantes

The Drrectors are responsible for the mantanance and integrty

of the Company's website Legsslation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and disseminaton of financial statements
may differ from legistabon in other junsdictions

By order of the Board

M\Q_ng

CAROLINE GEARY
COMPANY SECRETARY
15 MAY 2012

Registered Office
Chalfont House
Oxford Road
Denham UB9 4DX

Registered number 61880
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

ntroduction

As a company listed on the Alternative Investment Market (AIM?,
the Company 1s not required to comply with the Directors’
Remuneration Report requirernents set out in Scheduls 8 of the
‘Large and Medum-sized Companias and Groups (Accourts
and Reports) Regulations 2008’ (‘the Regulabons”) Whilst the
Company 1s not required to comply with the Regulations, it has
used the Reguiations as guidance and voluntarily prasented
selected disclosures that reflect the extent of the Company's
apphcation of the Regulatons

Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remunarahon Commities dunng the

financial year were T Stannard (Non-executive Chairman) and

F Goldsmith (Non-executive Director} T Stannard 1s Charman of
the Remuneration Committee There have been no changes in

the compositon or charmanship of the Remuneration Committee
dunng the year The Chief Executive 15 nvited to attend meetings of
the Committee but no Director 1s nvolved in any decisions relating
to ther own remuneration

None of the Committes has any personal financial interest other
than as shareholders), conflicts of interests ansing from cross
directorships, or day to day involvernent In running the business

The Commuttee Is respansible for seting the framework and policy
for the remuneration of the Executive Directors and designated
senior managers It determines spacific elements of their
remuneration, thair contractual terms and, where necessary,
compensation arrangements

The Committee keeps itself nformed of all relevant developments
and best practice n the field of remuneration and seeks advice
from extemal adwisers when it considers it 1s appropnate In
determining the Directors’ remuneration for the year, Including

the structure of long-term incentive plans for management, the
Committes consutted BDO Stoy Hayward about its proposals
800 Stoy Hayward alse prowide taxation advice and consuttancy
sarvices to the Group

Remuneration policy

The Group’s remuneration policy 1s designed to ensure that

the remuneratton packages attract, motvate and retamn drectors
and serior managers of high calibre and to reward them for
enhancing value to shareholders The Company's policy 1s that
a substantial proportion of the total potential remuneration of the
Executive Drrectors should be performance related and aligned
1o performance measures that benefit all shareholders and
promotes the long-term success of the Company The
parformance measurement of the Executve Directors and the
determination of therr annual remuneration package, Including
performance targsts, are undertaken by the Remuneration
Committee There are four main elements of the remuneration
package for Executive Directors and other senior management
— basic annual salary and benefits,

— annual bohus payments,

- long-term incentives, and

— pension arrangements

The remuneration of the Non-executive Directors compnises only
Directors’ fees and 1s determined by the Executive Directors

Basic salary and benefits (n kind

Salary 1s norrmally reviewed annually n February, or when
responsibiities change In deciding the appropnate levels, the
Committee takes into account factors which it considers necessary
Including industry standard executve remuneration and relative pay
levels within the Group Each Executive Director 1s prowvided with
health care benefits

Annual performance related bonus

Each Executve Drector’s remuneration package includes a
performance related bonus For the year ended 31 January 2012, the
maxarnum bonus payable was 70% of basic salary Annual financial
performance targsts are set along with Indvidual objectives

Long-Term Incentive Plan (‘LTIP?)

All equity based awards are subject to an overall imitation on the
number of new shares issued to 10% within any 10 year penod
The LTIP was approved by sharsholders in 2006 and 1s valid for
a 10 year penod

The LTIP seeks to rmotivate and retain Executive Directors and other
senior management within the Group, to enable them to potentally
benefit from improved total shareholder return (TSR} performance
of the Group The Committee administers the LTIP and the grant of
ril ¢ost options under the LTIP The maximum annual value of ril
cost options that can be made to an indvdual 1s equivalent to
150% of basic salary at the date of grant The options granted
dunng the year will only become exercisable (vest) If the
pertormance condrions are met, which includes continued
employment of the indwdual by the Grroup

A full summary of the parformance condrtions attaching to
outstanding awards can be found on page 62 To the extent that
these performance conditions are not met at the end of the vesting
penod, the optons will lapse

Pensions

J 8ach is a member of the defined benefit section of the
Walker Greenbank Pension scheme and the Abans Holdings
Pension Scheme Both schemes were closed to new entrants
from Apnl 1997 and Apnl 1898 respectively Both schemes
were closed to future acerual of benefits on 30 June 2002
and 30 June 2005 respectvely

J Sach, D Smallndge and A Dix are members of a Group

Personal Pension Plan sponsored by the Group For the purposes
of determining employer contnbutions to that scheme, annual
performance related bonuses are not ncluded in the pensionable
pay of the Executve Directors

Directors' contracts

ltis the Company’s policy that Executive Directors should have
contracts with an indefintte term prowviding for a maximum of one
year's notice

In the event of early termination, the Executive Directors' contracts
provide for compensation of an amourt equal to the gross salary
and benefits that they would have recenved dunng the balance of
the notice penod, plus any bonus, once declared to which they
would have become entited had contractual notice been given
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Non-executive Directors

All Non-sxecutive Directors have service contracts with an indefinite term subject to a six month notice provision Therr remuneration 1S
determined by the Board taking imto account their duties and the level of fees paid to Non-exscutive Directors of smilar companies The
Non-exacutive Directors do not participate in the Company’s borus, long-temm incentive schemes and ne pension contnibutions are made
in respect of them

Aggregate Directors’ remuneration
The total amounts for Directors' remuneration were as follows

Annual LTIP Benefits Panson 2012 201
Salary borus Awarca n kind coentribution Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Executive Directors
J Sach 231 162 244 2 35 674 428
D Smallndge 183 128 174 1 27 513 310
A Dix 132 49 139 2 13 335 218
Non-executive Directors
T Stannard 62 - - - - 62 60
F Goldsmith 27 - - - - 27 27
635 338 557 5 75 1,611 1,041

Directors' pension entittements
Accrued annual pension benefits for J Sach at the year end were £11,570 (2011 £11,072)

Directors' LTIP Awards

Maximum awards MaxImurm awards at
Date of grant et 1 February 2011 Granted In year Exercised in yaar Lapsed m year 31 January 2012
J Sach
24405/2007 485,283 - 485,283 - -
27/05/2009 800,000 - - - 800,000
20/05/2010 680,000 - - - 880,000
19/05/2011 - 589,623 - - 589,623
1,875,283 589,623 495,283 - 2,069,623
D Smalindge
24/05/2007 383,774 - 353,774 - -
27/05/2009 600,000 - - - 600,000
20/05/2010 485,000 - - - 495,000
19/05/2011 - 467,347 - - 467,347
1,448,774 467,347 353,774 - 1,562,347
A Dix
24/05/2007 283,019 - 283,019 - -
27/15/2009 300,000 - - - 300,000
20/05/2010 292,000 - - - 292,000
19/05/2011 - 337,893 - - 337,693
875,019 337,693 283,019 - 929,693

The award of shares on 24 May 2007 had a four year vesting penod The award level was dependent upon the profit befors tax resutt for
the financial year ended 31 January 2011 The maximum award vested as the profit before tax result exceedsd the upper range target of
£4 3millon The share pnce on the date of grant was 53 Cp
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The award of shares on 27 May 2009 has a three year vasting
penod and 1s sulbject to a minmum adjusted profit before tax hurdle
of £3 1 milkon for the financial year ended 31 January 2012 The
award begins to vest to Executve Directors upen the Company
achieving TSR at the median of ts comparator group operating in
the Household sector and increases on a sliding scale to achieve
maximum award if the Company tops its comparator group The
share price on the dats of grant was 14 25p

The award of shares on 20 May 2010 has a three year vesting
penod and Is subject to a minmum adjusted profit before tax hurdle
of £3 5 milkon for the financial year ended 31 January 2013 The
award begins to vest to Executve Directors upon the Company
achteving TSR at the median of its comparator group operating in
the Household sector and increases on a shding scals to achieve
maxirmnum award If the Company tops s comparator group The
share price on the date of grant was 33 0p

The award of shares on 18 May 2011 has a three year vasting
pencd and 1s subjact to a minmum adjusted profit bafore tax hurdle
of £6 0 million for the financial year ended 31 January 2014 The
award begins to vest 1o Executve Dirctors upon the Company
achieving TSR at the median of ts comparator group operating
the Household sector and increases on a shding scale to achieve
maximum award If the Gompany tops its comparator group The
share pnce on the date of grant was 49 0p

The share pnee reached a high of 57 2p and a low of 42 55p dunng
the financial year ended 31 January 2012 The average share pnce
during the financial year was 49 6p The share pnce on 31 January
2012 was 5175p

Total Shareholder Return index for the five financial years
ending 31 January 2012
%

9
I ] 1 | T 1 1 I I 1
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= Walker Qreenbank PLC  — FTSE AIM ALL SHARE

Approval
This report was approved by the Drectors and signed on s behalf by

CAROLINE GEARY

COMPANY SECRETARY
15 MAY 2012
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

As a Company listad on the Alternative Investment Market (AIM’)
the Company is not required to 1ssue a statement of compliance
with the pnnciples and provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Cods (‘the Coda’} Whilst the Company ts not required to comply
with the Code, tt has used the Code as best practice guidancse and
woluntanly presented disclosures that reflect the extent of the
Cormpany's application of the Code

The Board
The Company 1s supervised by the Beard of Direciors The Board
compnses three Executive and two Non-executve Directors

The Board considers, after careful review, that the Non-execuive
Directors brang an independent judgement to bear All Non-executve
Directors have contracts which contan sx month notice clauses
These are available for nspection at the Company's registered office
and at the Annual General Mesting (AGM') All Directors retre by
rotation at regular ntervals in accordance with the Company's
Articles of Association and the pnnciples of the Code The Non-
axacutve Directars continue 1o retirg far re-alecton at lkast every thind
year All Directors undergo a performance evaluation before beng
proposad for re-electon to ensure ther performance continues to be
gifectve, that where appropnate they mantain their ndependsnce
and that they are demonstrating continued commutrrient to the role

The Board meets at least nine times each year and has a formal
scheduls of matters reserved to it 1t 1s responsible for overall Group
strateqy, approval of major ¢aprtal expendrture projects, approval of
the annual and interm results, annual budgets, dvidend policy, and
Board structure it monitors the exposure to key business nsks and
reviews the strategic direction of all trading subsidianes. therr annual
budgets, ther performance in relation to those budgsts and ther
capral expenddure

All Directors recena regular and tirmely inforrmation on the Group's
operatonal and financial performance Relevant nformation 1s
cwculated 1o he Drectors m acvance o mestings Al Directors

have drect access to the adwee and services of the Company
Secretary and are able to take Independent professional advica in the
furtherancs of therr duties, f necessary, at the Company’s expense

Board Committees

The Board has Remuneration, Audt and Nomination Committees,
each of which has wrtten terms of reference which are avalable on
the Company's website The Company Secretary acts as secretary
to the committees The Board 1s satisfied that the committees
tischarged ther responsibiliies appropnately

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee 1s chaired by T Stannard, the
Non-executve Charman and compnses F Goldsrmith, the other
Non-executve Director and J Sach, the Chief Executive ft makes
recommendations 1o the Board on all new Board appointmerts

The Company's Articles of Associabion stipulate that one third of the
Directors or the nearest whole number below one third shall retire
sach year The Company requires all Directors to submit themselves
for re-election at least every three years

Remunerabon Committee

The Remuneration Committee is chared by T Stannard and

F Goldsmith The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
making recornmendations to the Board n relaton to all aspects
of remuneration for Executve Directors and designated senior
managers The Remuneration Committee believes that the
presence of the Chief Executive 1s important when dstermining
tha remuneration of the other Executive Drectars

in framing s policy the Remuneraton Commirttae takes into
account any factors which it deems necessary, including industry
standard executive remuneration, differentials between executve

and employes remuneration and differentials between executives
The remuneration of the Non-executive Directors 1s determined by
the Execuive Directors

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee 1s charred by F Geldsmith and compnses

T Stannard Although all the Committee mernbers are considered
to be appropnately expenenced to fulfil their role, F Geldsmith is
considered as having significant, recent and relevant expenence
in ine with the Code Further details of each of the independent
Directors are set out on page 22 The Audit Commitiee meets at
least three ires each year Tt considers any matter relating to the
financial affars of the Group and to the Group's external audit that it
determines to be relevant In particular the Committee overviews
the monrtonng of the adequacy of the Group's mternal controls,
accounting pokicies and financial repering, and provides a forurn
through which the Group's external auditors report o the
Non-executive Cirectors

Auditar independence

The Audrt Comrmittee regularly monitors the non-audit services
provided by the extemal Auditors and iees relating to non-audt
senices are detaled in the Annual Report and Accounts (note 7)
The Committee confirms it 1s satisfied with the iIndependence,
objectty and effectiveness of the extemal Auditor, PwC, and
accordingly a resolution to reappoint PwC as Auditor will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM

Intemal contro!
The Board acknowledges that it (s responsible for the Group's
system of intemal control and for reviewing rts effectveness

The Board keeps its nsk control procedures under constant review
partculany with regard to the need to embed intemal control and nsk
managsmert procedures further into the operatiens of business,
both in the UK and overseas, and to deal with areas of mprovement
which come to management's and the Board's attenion

As might be expected in a group of this sze, a key control
procedurs is the day to day supervision of the busmaess by the
Executive Directars, supported by the senior managers with
responsibility for key operations

The Executive Directors are involved in the budget setting

process, regularly monitor key performance indicators and review
managernent accounts on a monthly basis, noting and investigating
any major vanances All significant capital expenditure decisions
are gpproved by the Board as a whole

The Group's significant nsks, together with the relevant control and
monitonng procedures, ang subject to regular review to enable the
Board to assess the effectiveness of the systern of internal control
Dunng the course of its reviews the Board has not identified nor
been advised of any fallings or weaknesses which it has determined
to be sigruficant other than disclosed in the Report of the Directors

The Group’s systemn of intemal control s designed to manage
rather than eliminate the nsk of falure to achieve business
objectives, and can only prowide reasonable and not absolute
assurance agamst matenal misstaterment or loss

The Board has considerad the need for an nternal aud function,
but because of the size and nature of its operatons does not
consider it necessary at the current time

Relations with shareholders

The Group encourages two way communications with both its
Instituhonal and private Investors and responds in a timely fashton to all
quenes receved All shareholders receve notice of the AGM at which
all Commuttee chairs will be avallable for guestions
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF WALKER GREENBANK PLC

Wa have audited the Group financial statements of Walker
Greenbank PLC for the year ended 31 January 2012 which compnse
the Consolidated Income Statement, Consclidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Conscldated Balance Shest, Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement, Consolidated Statement of Changes n Equity,
the Accounting Policies and the related notes The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in therr preparation 1s applicabls law
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs’) as adopted
by the Buropean Union

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibiiies, the Drectors are respensible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give

a true and far view Our responsibifity 1S to audit and express an
opnion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and International Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland)
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, nciuding the opinions, has been prepared for and

only for the Company's members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other
purpose We do not, n gving thess opinions, accept or assume
responsibiity for any other purpose or to any other person 1o whorn
this report 1s shown or Into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our pnor consent n wnting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit Involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reascnable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal
rsstaterment, whether caused by fraud or error This mcludes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to
the Group's crcumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed, the reasenableness of significant accounting
sshrnates made by the Drectors, and the overall presentation of
the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and
non-financial Information in the Annual Report to identify matenal
Inconsistencies with the audrted financial statements If we become
aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or Inconsistencies
we consider the mplications for our report

Opwion on financial statements

In our opinion the Group financial statements

- gwe atrue and far view of the state of the Group's affars as at
31 January 2012 and of its profit and cash flows for the year
then ended,

- have been property prepared In accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union, and

— have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

Opiniont on other matter prescnbed by the Comparnies

Act 2006

In our opirten the nformation given in the Birectors’ Report for the
financial year for which the Group financial statements are prepared
15 conaistent with the Group financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters

whare the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you ff,

1N our opIRIoN

— certan disclosures of Drectors’ rernuneration specified by law
ars not made, or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit

Other matter

We have reported separately on the parent Company
finrancial statements of Walker Greenbank PLC for the year
ended 31 January 2012

(kg ~_

OWEN MACKNEY
(SENIOR STATUTORY AUDITOR)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

St Albans

15 May 2012
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

YEAR ENDED 31 JANUARY 2012

2012 2011
Note £000 £000
Revenue 4 74,014 88,778
Profit from operations before exceptional items 5,665 4,472
Exceptional items
Insurance settlerment 5 - 500
Profit from operations 4-7 5,555 4,972
Net defined banefit pension charge 8 (407) (384)
Interest payable 9 {254) (234)
interest recevable 9 - 88
Net borrowing costs 9 (254) {146)
Net finance costs (661) {510)
Profit before tax 4,894 4,462
Total tax charge 12 (1,065) (1,434)
Profit for the year 3,829 3,028
Earnings per share - Basic and diluted 13 8.76p 5 36p

The notes on pages 36 to 64 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEAR ENDED 31 JANUARY 2012

2012 201
Nota £000 £000
Profit for year 3,829 3,028
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense):
Actuanal gains on scheme assets 23 5,460 1,718
Other actuanal losses on scheme habilities 23 (6,864) {1,559)
Currency translation (losses)/gains {41) 4
Cash flow hedges (losses) (113) (112}
{Reduction) of deferred tax asset relating to pension scheme liabiity 47 {403)
Other comprehensive expense for the year, net of tax {1,605) {352)
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to the owners of the parent 2,224 2,676

The notes on pages 36 to 64 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AT 31 JANUARY 2012

2012 201
Noter £000 £000

Non-current assets
Intangible assets 14 6,111 5973
Property, plant and equipment 15 9,313 8,768
Deferred income tax assets 16 2,850 3,982

18,274 18,723

Current assets

Inventories 17 17,000 15,630
Trade and other recewvables 18 13,047 14,383
Derwative financial asset 19 54 63
Cash and cash equivalents 20 2,197 1,927
32,298 32,003
Total assets 50,572 50,726
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 21 {17.511) (18,847}
Dervative financial liability 19 (50) -
Borrowings 22 (400) {400)
(17,961) (19,247
Net current assets 14,337 12,756
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 22 (2,464) (3.344)
Retiremeant benefit abligation 23 (7,095) (6,742}
(9,559) (10,086)
Total habilities (27,520) (29,333)
Net assets 23,052 21,393
Equity
Share capiial 25 590 590
Share premium account 457 457
Foreign currency translation reserve (202) (161)
Accumulated losses {18,250) (20,063)
Other reserves 40,457 40,570
Total equity 23,052 21,393

The notes on pages 36 to 84 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

JOHN SACH ALAN DIX
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

These financial statements were authonsed for 1ssue by the Board of Directors on 15 May 2012

Registered number: 61880




3_&

WALKER GREENBANK PLC
Annual Report and Accounts 2012

CONGSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

YEAR ENDED 31 JANUARY 2012

2012

20m

Note £000 {000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 28 4,530 4,456
Interest pard {230) (209)
Debt 1ssue costs - {62}
Interest receved - 88
Income tax paid {18) (13)
4,282 4,260
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of intangible fixed assets (441) (503)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,097) {1,950)
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment - 1
(2,538) {2,452)
Cash flows from financing activities
Purchase of treasury shares - (178}
Repayment of borrowings (904) {1.666}
Dwidends paid to Company’s shareholders (570) {368}
(1,474) (2,212}
Net increase/{decrease)} in cash, cash eguivalents and bank overdrafts 270 (404)
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at beginning of year 1,927 2,333
Exchange losses on cash and bank overdrafts - 2)
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at end of year 29 2,197 1,927

The notes on pages 36 to 64 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

YEAR ENDED 31 JANUARY 2012

Other resarves

Share Capnal Hedge
Share capttal premlurm Retained reserve Merger reserve Translation
£000 account earnings £000 rgserve £000 reserve Total
{ncte 25) £000 £000 {note 28) £000 {note 19) £000 £000
Balance at 1 February 2010 590 457 (22,784) 43,457 (2,850 175 {165} 18,770
Prefit for the year - - 3,028 - - - - 3,028
Qther comprehensive income
Actuanal gains cn scheme assets
(note 23) - - 1,718 - - - - 1,718
Other actuanal losses on scheme
habities {note 23} - - (1,559 - - - - {1,559)
Deferred tax relating to pension
scheme liability - - (403) - - - - 403)
Currency translation differences - - - - - - 4 4
Cash flow hedging reserve — released
to Income Statement - - - - - (175) - (175)
Cash flow hedging reserve —
recognised in equity durning the year - - - -~ - 63 - 63
Total comprehensive income/
{expense) - - 2,784 - - (113 4 2,676
Transactions with owners
Dividends - - (368) - - - - (368}
Reserve for long-term incentive plan - - 493 - - - - 493
Purchase of treasury shares - - (178} - - - - (178}
Balance at 31 January 2011 590 457  (20,063) 43,457 (2,950 63 (161} 21,393
Profit for the year - - 3,829 - - - - 3,828
Other comprehensive iIncome
Actuanial gains on scheme assets
{note 23) - - 5,460 - - - - 5,460
Other actuanal losses on scheme
habiities (note 23) - - 6,864) - - - - {6,864)
Deferred tax relating to pension
scheme liability - - 47) - - - - {47)
Currency translation differences - - - - - - (41} (41}
Cash flow hedging reserve - released
1o Income Staternent - - - - - {61) - B1)
Cash flow hedging reserve -
recognised In equity dunng the year - - - - - (62} - (52)
Total comprehensive income/
(expense} - ~ 2,378 - - (113) 41) 2,224
Transactions with owners
Dmidends - - (570) - - - - (570)
Long-term incentive plan charge - - 353 - -~ - - 353
Long-term incentive plan vesting - - (348) - - - - (348)
Balance at 31 January 2012 590 457 (18,250) 43,457 (2,950) {50) (202) 23,052
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

t Accounting policies and general information

General information

Walker Greenbank PLC ('the Company’) and rts subsidianes (togsther ‘the Group’) is a luxury intenor fumishings group whose brands
include Harlsquin, Sanderson, Moms & Co and Zoffany The brands are targeted at the med to upper end of the premium market They
have worldwide distnbution including prestigious shawrooms at Chelsea Harbour, London and the D&D buiding, Manhattan, New York
Half of the brand's turnover 1s sourced in-house from the Group's own specialist manufacturng facites of Stanadfast & Barracks, the

fabnc printing business situated in Lancaster, and Anstey Wallpaper Company situated in Loughborough The manufactunng businesses
produca for other intenor furmishing businesses beth in the UK and throughout the world The Company s a pubkc imited company which
i1 isted on the Alternative Investment Markst of the London Stock Exchange and 1s regrstered and dormiciled in the UK

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intematonal Financial Reporing Standards as adopted by
the Europsean Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU’) and Intemational Financial Reporting Interpretation Gommittes (IFRICT interpretations
and the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the valuation of denvative financial Instruments at far value, and with the accounting
policies set out below which have been consistently applied to all pencds presented unless otherwise indicated

The Group mests its day to day working capital requirements through its banking faciliies The Groups forecasts and projections, taking
account of rasonably possible changes in trading performance show that the Group will be able to operate within the level of its current
faciites as disclosed in note 22

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to cortimue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future Therefore the Group continues to adopt the going concern basis 1N prepanng ts consolidated financial statements

In prepanng these financial statements the Group has applied the IFRSs adopted by the European Union and the IFRIC interpretations
where the effective date 1s relevant to the financial year commencing on 1 February 2011 or ending 31 January 2012

Since the Group's previous annual financid statements for the year ended 31 January 2011 the following pronouncements are now
effective and have been adopted by the Group

— IFRS 1 (revised) ‘First tme adoption’ — effective 1 July 2010

~ Armendment to IFRS 1 ‘First tme adoption on financial instrument disclosures’ - effective 1 July 2010

~ IAS 24 {revised) ‘Related Party Disclosures’ — effective 1 January 2011

- Amendment to IAS 32 ‘Financial Instrument Presentation on Classification of Rights Issuss’ - effectve 1 February 2010
- IFRS Annual improvernents 2010) — sffective 1 January 2011

- Amendment to IFRIC14 ‘Prepayments of minimum funding requirement’ — effective 1 January 2011

- IFRIC 19 ‘Extinguishing financia! labilites with equity instruments” — effective 1 July 2010

There has been no matenal effect on the Group's financial statements following the introduction of the above

The Group has not applied the following new standards, amendments and interpretations for which adoption 1s not mandatory for the year
ending 31 January 2012 and/or which have not yet been endorsed by the EU The Group has not concluded rts evaluation of the impact of
these pronouncernents but at this stage does not expect there to be any matenal impact an the financial statements

- Amendment to IFRS 1 {rewised) ‘First ime adoption — on fixed dates and hypennflation’ — effectve 1 July 2011
~ Amendment to IAS 1 ‘Financial statement presentation regarding other comprehensive Income’ — effective 1 July 2012
— Amendrment to IAS 12 ‘incorne taxes on deferred tax' — effective 1 January 2012

- Amendment to IAS 19 ‘Employee benefits’ - effective 1 January 2013

-~ IAS 27 (revised 2011} 'Separate financial statements' — effective 1 January 2013

— IAS 28 {revised 2011} 'Associates and joint ventures' — effective 1 January 2013

- Annual mprovements to IFRS (2011)

- Amendment to IFRS 7 ‘Financial nstruments - disclosures on derecogrition’ — effective 1 July 2011

- IFRS 9 'Financral instruments — classification and measurement” — effective 1 January 2013

- {FRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial statements’ — effectve 1 January 2013

- IFRS 11 Joirt amangements’ - effective 1 January 2013

— IFRS 12 'Disclosure of nterests in cther entties' — effective 1 January 2013

- IFRS 13 'Far value measurement’ - effective 1 January 2012

In addrion, a number of exposwre drafts of new or amended standards and ntermretzations have been announced by the Intemational Accourting
Standards Board (lASB} These include exposure drafts on revenue recognition and leases, until final detals of these and other exposure drafts
have been conchuded by the IASB the Group s not able to evaluats the potental impact on the Group of these pronouncements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain crircal accounting estmetes 1t also requires management
1o exeraise ts judgerment in the process of appiying the Group's accounting poficies The areas involving a igher degree of udgement or
complexaty, or areas where assumptions and estmates are sgnificant to the consolidated financral statements are disclosed nnote 3

The financial statements of the Company as an entity continue to be prepared under United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice and are presented separately from the consolidated financial statements (pages €6 to 73)
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1 Accounting policies and general information continued

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial Information incomporates the financial statements of the Company and all its subsidiary undertakings macle up to
31 January each year Subsidianes are entities where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies, generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than cne half of the voting nghts The existence and effect of potential voing nghts that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered whan assessing whether the Group controls another entrty

The resutts of subsidianes acquired or disposed of dunng the year are included in the Income Staternent from the effective date on which
control 1s transferred to or from the Group, as appropnate

Where necessary, adustments are made to the financial statements of subsidianes to bring accounting pokcies used inte ine with those
used by the Group

The acquisition of subsidianes 1s accounted for using the purchase method The cost of the acquistion 1s measured as the aggregate of
the far values, at the date of exchange, of the assets given, labilites ncurred or assumed, and equity instruments Issued by the Group,

in exchange for contral of the acquiree The identifiable assets, labilites and contmgent kabiibes assumed in a business combination are
measured intally at therr farr values at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with IFRS 5 ‘Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations’, which are recognised and measured at
faur value less costs to sell

Goodwil ansing on acquisition 1s recognised as an asset n accordance with the policy described below

All inter-company transactions and balances are eiminated on consolidation Profits and losses resulting from inter-company transactons
that are recogrised in assets, such as Inventory, are eliminated in full Urrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an imparment of the assets transferred

Employee Share Ownership Plans {ESOPs') controlled by the Group are also ncluded by consolidation Untl shares held by the ESOP vest
uncondrtionalty In and are transferred to employeses, the consideration paid for those shares 1s deducted frorm consolidated equity No gain
or loss 1s recognised in the staternent of comprehensive Income on the purchass, sals, issue or cancellation of shares, Including transfers to
and from treasury shares Dividends recervable on shares held by the ESOP are excluded from the Income Staternent, and are excluded
from amounts recogrised as dividends payable by the Group

Foreign currencies
For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position are expressed in stering, which is the functional
currency of the Comparty, and the presentation cumrency for the consolidated financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies, which ara those other than the functional currency of an entity, are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of
the transacton Monetary assets and labilties denorminated in foreign currency are translated at the rate ruling at the Balance Shest date All
unhedged exchange differances are recognised in the Income Statement for the pencd and dassified as other operating income or charges

The assets and llabilities of the Group's overseas subsidianes on consolidation are transtated at the rates of exchange ruting at the

Balance Sheet date The Income and expenses are translated at the weighted average rate dunng the penod Differences on translation are
recognised i a separate foreign currency translation reserve within equity On disposal of an overseas subsidiary, the cumulative exchange
differences for that subsichary are recognised In the Income Statement as part of the profit or loss on disposal

Intangible Assets — Goodwill

Goodwil ansing on acquisiton s Intially measured at cost, beng the excess of tha far value of the consideration for the acquistion,

which includes the amount of any non-controlling Interest recogrised, over the Group's nterest in the net farr value of the acquired entity’s
dentifiable assets and habilites and any non-contralling interest in the acquires at the date of acquisiton Goodwall is not amortised, but
reviewed for imparment annually, any impairment is recognised iImmediately in the Income Staterment and 1S not subsequertty reversed
Goodwil is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of imparment tasting The allocation 18 made to those cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose

On disposal of a subsidiary or cash generating unit, the attnbutable amount of goodwill 1s Included In the determination of the profit or loss
on disposal

Inlangible Assets - Archive

Tha Arthur Sanderson and Willam Morns archive compnses an histonical record of unique designs that are used to generate a significant
royalty ncome in the business The archive s valued at histoncal cost The Directors beleve that the archive has an indefinite usefut ife and
15 therefors not subject to amortisation The camying value of this asset is reviewed annually and provision made for any impawrment in the
carrying value ff required

Intangible Assets - Software

Acqured computer software licences are ceprtalised at the cost incurred to bnng the asset into use, ncluding where relevant directly
attnbutable internal costs incurred in prepanng the software for operation The costs are amortised to ther esimated residual valua over
thewr estmated useful life which range from three to six years Software amortisation commences when the asset goes Into operational use
by the business
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conmnuen .

1 Accounting policies and general information continued

Intangible Assets — Coflection design

Research expendrure is recognised as an expense as Incurred Costs Incurred on development projecs relating to the design of new
collections are recognised as intangible assets when the following critena are fulfiled

- Itis techrucally feasible to complete the new collection so that it will be avalable for use or sale

~ Management intends o compleate the new collection and use it or sell it

— There s an abity to use or sell the new collection

~ It can be demonstrated how the new collection will generate probable future economic benefits

- Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the new collection are avalable
- The expenditure attnbutable o the new collection dunng its development can be reliably measured

Aty costs relating to design of new coflections that do not mest these crntena are recognised as an expense as ingurred Any such costs

recognised as an expense In previous pencds are not recognised as an asset N a subsequent penod Capitalised collection design costs

are recognised as intangble assets and are amortisad to ther estimated residual value at 25% on a straight kne basis over the Ife of the

asset, and are tested for mparment if any impaimment tngger events are identfied in accordance with IAS 36 |

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at histencal cost less accurnutated depreciation and any recogrised imparrment loss Histoncal
cost compnses the purchase pnce and costs directly ncurred in bringing the asset into use The assets’ residual values and useful ves are
reviewed annually and adjusted f appropnate, at each Balance Sheet date

Depreciation i1s charged on a straight ine basis on the onginal costs (excluding freehold land) after deduction of any estimated residual
value The pnncipal annual rates are

Freehold buldings 2%

Leasehold improvements Over the length of the lease
Plant, eguipment and vehicles Between 5% and 33%
Computer hardware 33%

|
|
Government grants recenved for property, plant and equipment are classified within the cost of property, plant and equipment and released |
to the Income Statement over the Iife of the asset |
Impairment of non-financial assets '
Intangible assets with finte useful ives and property, plant and equipment are tested for Impaiments If events or changes In circumstances

{assessed at each reporting date) Indicate that the carmying amount may not be recoverable When an mpasrment tast 1s conducted, the

recoverable amount 1s assessed by reference to the tigher of the value in use {net present value of expected future cash flows of the

relevant cash generating unit}, or the far value less cost to sell

Goodwill and other intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are tested for imparment at least annually

if a cash generating unit 1Is iImpairad, provision 1S made to reduce the carrying amount of the related assets to ther estmated recoverable
amount Impairment losses are allocated firstly aganst goodwill, and secondly on a pro rata basis aganst intangible and other assets

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffer mpairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the Impairment at each reporting date

Inventones

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable valus Cost compnises direct matenals, on a first-In, first-out basis, and direct
labour, plus attnbutable production overheads based on a normal level of activity Net realisable valus 1s based on estimated seling prices
less anticipated costs of disposal Provision s made for any slow mowving and obsolete inventory

Marketing matenals
Marketing matenals consist of patteming books and other saleable marketing assets used to support the sale of the Groug’s products
They are recognised at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost compnsss direct matenals plus costs of production

Net realisable value 1s based on estmated recovenes from customers and distnbutors for those pattemn books expectsd to be sold, less the
anticipated cost of disposal

As books are sold or otherwise utiised and are no longer within the control of the Group, thear cost is charged to the Income Statement as
an expense Animpaiment allowance 1s mads for any slow moving and obsolete marketing matenals including those expected 1o be gven
away free of charge The Group's policy I1s to classify markating matenals on the Balance Sheet within trade and other recevabies

Non-saleable marketing matenals are expensed to the Income Staternent once the collaction that these marketing matenals relate to has
beenlaunchad Any subsequent costs or development expenditure are expensed as incurred

Financial assets and liabilitres - measurement basis

Financial assets and habilites are recognised on the date on which the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument gnvng nse to the asset or lability Financial assets and habiities are niially recognised at far value plus transacton costs Any
Imparment of a financial asset (s charged to the Income Statement when incurred  Financial assets are derecogrised when the Group's
nghts to cash inflows from the asset expire financial hahilites are derecognised when the contractual obligatons are discharged, cancelled
or expire
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Financial assets and habiifies - measurement basis contnued

Non-dervative finaricial assets are classified according to the purpose for which the asset was acquired The Group’s financial assets are

classified as either

— ‘trade and other recenables’ — these are non-dervative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
actve market They arge when the Group provides goods directly to a customer, or advances money, with no intention of trading the
foan or receivable Subsequent to iniial recognition, loans and recevables are included in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost using the
effective Interest method less any amounts written off to reflect mpairment, with ehanges in the carrying amount recogrised in the
Income Staternent within administration expenses, and

- ‘cash and cash equvalents’ — these compnse deposits with an onginat maturity of three months or less with barks and financial
institutions, bank balances, bank overdrafts and cash in hand !

A provision for impairment of trade and cther recevables s established when there 1s objective ewdence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to tha onginal terms of the recevables Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial recrganisation, default or detnguency In payments, and the unavallability of credit insurance at
commercial ratas for debtors are considered iIndicators that the tfrade recevable may be impared The amount of the provision 1s the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the net present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the onginal
effective interest rate The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced through the use of a provision account, and the amount of the loss s
recognised in the Income Statement within administrative expenses When a trade recenable is uncollectble, it s wnitten off against the
provision account for trade recenvables Subseqguent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against administration
expenses In the Income Statement

The Group's non-denvative financial habilities are classified as ‘Other labilites’ Other lablites are financial bablites with fixed or

determinable payments that are not quoted in an actve market They anse when the Group receives goods or services drrectly from a

credrtor or supplier, or borrows money, with no intertion of trading the hability This category includes

- ‘trade and other payables’ ~ these are typically non-interest beanng and following nrtial recognition are ncluded in the Balance Sheet at
amortised cost,

— ‘bank loans and overdrafts’ — these are Initially recorded at far valus based on proceeds receved net of issue costs Finance charges
are accounted for on an accruals basis and charged to the Income Statermnent using the effective interest rate method, and

— ‘borrowings’ - these are recorded Intially at the farr value, net of direct Issue costs, and ars subsequently stated at amortised cost
Finance charges, Inclucing prermiums payabie on settlement, or redemption and direct 1ssue costs, are accounted for on an accruals
basis In the Income Staternent, using the effective Nterest method, and are Included within the carnang amount of the mstrument to the
extent that they are not settled in the penod in which they anse

Borrowing costs are capitalised as an increase 10 the carrying value of software or property, plant and squipment on mgjor projects where
ther impact 1s matenal

Denwvative financial instruments and hedge accounting - measurement basis

The Group's actvities expose 1t o the financial nsks of changes in exchange rates, and the Group uses forward exchange rate contracts
and swap exchange rate contracts to manage these exposures The use of demvative financial Instruments 15 governed by the Group's
policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written pnnciples on the use of dervative financial Instruments

The Group documents at the Inception of the transacton the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged tems The Group also
documents ts assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the denvatives that are used In hedging transactions
are highly effective In offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items The effective portion of changes N the fair value of
denvainves that are designated and qualffy as cash flow hedges s recognised in equrty

The gan or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised Immediately n the Income Staternent within *Other operating ncome/
{expense)’ Amounts accumulated in equrty are released to the Income Statement when the hedged item affects the Income Staternent,
and are also classified in the Income Statement within *Other cperating income/{expensey

Dervatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting under 1AS 39 are classified as financial assets or labikbes at far value through profit
arloss’ They are intally recognised at far value, with far value being remeasured at each reporting date The fair value of the denvative I
based on market price of comparable instruments at the Balance Sheet date Changes in far value are included in the Income Statement
within finance costs

The Group has no embedded denvatives that are not closely related to the host instrument

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent only iquid assets with onginal maturty of 90 days or less Cash and cash eguivalerts include cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks and bank overdrafts Bank overdrafts that cannot be offset against other cash balances are shown
within borrowings in current habilbes on the Balance Sheet

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement it 1s the Group's policy to classify interest income and expense, and other finance costs,
within ‘cash flows from operating activites’

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it 1s probable that the Group will be
required to settle that obligation Provisions are measured at the Directors’ best estimate of the expendrure required to settle the obligation
at the Balance Sheet date, and are discounted 1o prasent value where the effect is considered matenal
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1 Accounting policies and general information continused

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantally all the nsks and rewards of ownership to the
Group All other leases are classified as operating leases

Assets used by the Group which have been funded through finance leases are capitalised in property, plant and equipment and the
resutting lease obligations are includad in liabilties The assets are depreciated over ther usefu! Iives and the iInterest element of the rental
obligations 1s charged to the Income Staterment over the penod of the lease, and represents a congtant proportion of the balance of capital
repayments outstanding

Cperating lease rentals are charged to the Income Statement on a straighi-line basis over the penod of the lease Rent free penods
recervable on entenng an operating lease are released on a straight-ine basis over the term of the lease

Empioyee benefits — pension obligations
Payments to defined contnbution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due

For defined benefit retrement schemes, the funding of benefits 1s deterrmined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, wiath full actuanal
valuations being camed out nennially

The retirement benefit abligation recognised In the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted
for unrecognised service cost, and as reduced by the far value of the scheme assets Any asset resultting from this calculation 1s imited to
past servica cost, plus present valua of avalable refunds and reductions In future contnibutions to the plan

The defined benefit obligatron 1s calculated annually by qualified independent actuanes using the Projected Unit Credit Method The present
value of the defined benefit obligation 1s determined by discounting the future cash outflows using interest rates of high quality corporate
bonds that have terms to maturty approximating to the terms of the related pension lability

Scherme expenses met by the Group, expected retums on plan assets, and interest an pension scheme habilites are classified within ‘Net
defined benefit pension charge’ within the Income Statement as the scheme Is now dlosed to future accruals

Actuanal gans and losses ansing from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised In full In the period n
which they occur They are recognised outside the Income Statement and presented m the Staterment of Comprehensive Income

Past service costs are recognised immediately to the extent that the bengfits are alreadly vested, and otherwise are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the average penod until the benefits become vested

Employee benefits - share-based payments under long-term incentive plans (‘LTIP’}
The Group 1ssuss equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees which must be measured at far value and recognised as an
expense In the Income Statement with & corresponding increase N squrty

The far values of these payments are measured at the date of grant, taking into account the terms and condrions upon which the awards
are grarted The farr valus 1s recogrised over the penod duning which employees become condionally entitied 1o the awards, subject to
the Group's estmate of the number of awards which will lapse, erther due to employees leaving the Group pror 10 vesting or dus to
non-market based performance conditions not being met

The total amount recognised In the Income Staterment as an expense 1s adjusted 1o reflect the actual number of awards that vest National
Insurance contnbutions related to the awards are recognised as an expense In tha Income Statement with a corresponding liabiity on the
Balance Shest

Employee benefits - short-term bonus plans
The Group recognises a hability and an expense far bonuses where contractually obliged or where there 1s a past practice that has created
a constructive obligation

Share capital
Qrdinary shares are classtfied as equity Costs directy atinbutable to the 1ssue of new ordinary shares are shown in equity as a deducton,
net of tax, from the proceeds

Treasury shares

Consideration paid including any directly attnbutable incremental costs {net of incoms taxes) on the purchase of the Cormpany’s equity
share capnal {treasury shares) 1s deducted from equrty atinbutable o the Company's equrty holders unti the shares are cancelled or
reissued Where such shares ars subsequently reissued, any consideraton receved, net of any directly attnbutable ncrernental transaction
costs and the related incoma tax effects 1s ncluded 1n equity attinbutable to the Company's equity shareholders

Revenue

The Group revenue 1s measured at fair value of the consideration receved or recevable and represents amounts recoverabls by the Group

for goods and services provided In the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales related taxes Revenue compnses

~ Sdle of goods - sales of goods are recognised when the Group has transferred to the buyer the sigrificant nisks and rewards of
ownership, which 1s usually at the point of delivery of the goods

— Rayaity revenue — royalties are receved from licence holders under the terms of vanous agreements, and are recogrised on an accruals
basis In accordance with the substance of tha relevant agresment
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Revenue contnued

Deposits receved from customers in advance of the delvery of goods or senvices are recognised as deferrad iIncome Amounts recewvable
from customers representing the recovery of expenses incurred by the Group for design and set-up costs, delivery, and marketing
matenals are not considered to be revenus, and are credited 1o the relevant expense within the Income Staterment

Exceptonal items
Items that ara both matenal and whose nature 1s suffictent to warrant separate disclosure and identification are disclosed within the financial
staterments and classified within their relevant category in the Income Statement

Taxation including deferred tax
The tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax charges or credits

Current tax 1s based on the taxable profit for the year Taxable profits differs from the net profit as reported in the Income Statement
because it excludes tems of ncoma or expense that are taxable or deductble in other years and it further excludes tems that are never
taxable or deductible The Group's hability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the Balance Sheet date Current tax includes withholding taxes from sales and licensing mcome in overseas terrfores

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payabls or recoverable on differences between the carmying amounts of assets and labiites in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and I1s accounted for using the balance
shest labiity method Deferred tax abirhes are generally recogrised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be avalable aganst which deductible temporary differences can be
utiised Such assets and llabiities are not recognised if the temporary difference anses from goodwill or from the initiad recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and labikbes in a transacton that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit

IAS 12 Income taxes’ requires that the measurement of deferred tax should have regard to the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner of expected recovery or settliement at the Balance Sheet date of the carrying amount of its assets and llabilties In calculating its
deferred tax lability the Group's policy 1s to regard the deprecable amount of the camying value of its property, plant and equipment to be
recovered through continuing use in the business, unless included within assets held for resale, where the policy Is to regard the carmyng
amount as being recoverable through sale

Deferred tax labihes are recogrised for taxable temporary differences ansing on iInvestments in subsidianes except where the Group 1s able
to control the reversal of the termporary difference and t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets s reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that it i1s no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be avalable to allow all or part of the assat to be recovered

Deferred tax s calculated at the tax rates that are expected te apply in the penod when the hability s settled or the asset 1s realised

Deferred tax 15 charged or credited in the Income Staterment, except when it relates to tems charged or credited directly to equity, in which
case the deferred tax 15 also dealt with i equrty Deferred tax relating to retrement benefit obligations 1s also recognised in equity where the
tax relief anses from contributions paid to fund deficits ansing in previous perods that were recognised In equity

Segmental reporting
The Group 1s a designer, manufacturer and distnbutor of furnishings, fabnes and wallpaper and manages fis operations as three reportable
segments which are brands, manufactunng and overseas

Reportable segments consist of one or more operating segments Aggregaton of operating segments into reportable segments ocours
when aggregation cntena, as laid down in IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments' are satisfied, ncluding similar economic charactenstics or when
operating segments are less than the quantitative limits as laxd down In IFRS 8 After applying aggregation, segmental nformation I1s
disclosed in a manner consistent with the intemnal reporting to the chief operating decision maker (CODM”)

The Group considers its CODM to be the Board of Birectors, who are responsible for the allocation of resources and assessing
performance of the operatng segments

Interest receved
Interest Income 1s accrued on a tme basis, by reference to the pincipal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable

2 Financial nsk management

The Group's actvities expose 1t to a vanety of financial nsks market nsk (including foreign exchange nsk and interest rate nsk), credit

nsk and iquichty nsk. The Group’s overall nsk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance The Group uses denvative financial Instruments to hedge certan
nsk exposures

Risk management i1s camed out at Board level undsr policies approved by the Board of Directors Executve Directors identify, evaluate and
where appropriate hedge financial nsks in close co-operation with the Group's operating unts

Foreign exchange nsk

The Group operates iIntsmationally and 15 exposed to foreign exchange nsk ansing from vanous currency exposures, prmarly with respect
1o the US dollar and the euro Foreign exchange nsk anses when future commercial transactions or recogrised assets or labilities are
denominated i a currency that is not the entity’s functional curency
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2 Financial nsk management continuad

Foreign exchange risk continued

The Group's policy 1s, where passible, to allow the Group’s entittes to setile labilities in therr functional curency with the cash generated
from their operations in that currency Whare the Group's entities have liabilites denominated in a currency other than their functional
currency (and have insufficient reserves of that currency to setfle them) cash already denorminated in that currency will, where possible
be fransferred from elsewhere in the Group

To manage the foreign exchange nsk ansing on future transactions, it 1s the Group's policy to enter into forward currency contracis to hedge
the exposure

For the year ended 31 January 2012, the average sterling to US dollar translation rate applied by the Group including the impact of hedging
contracts was £1  US$1 55 Ifthe rate had been £1  US$H1 45 with all other vanables held constant, profit before tax would have been
higher by £160,000 If the rate had been £1  US$1 65 with all other vanables held constant, profit befors tax would have been lower

by £140,000

For the year ended 31 January 2012, the average stering to euro translaton rate applied by the Group including the impact of hedging
confracts was £1 eurol115 If the rate had been £1  eurct 05 with all other vanables held constant, profit before tax would have been lower
by £273,000 If the rate had been £1  euro! 25 with all other vanables held constant, profit before tax would have been higher by £229,000

The sensrmty of movements In other currencies I1s not considered matenal to the performance of the Group

Interest rate risk
As the Group has no significant interest beanng assets its revenus and cash generated from operations are substantially ndependent of
changes in market interest rates

‘The Group's interest rate nsk anses from barrowings Borrowings issued at vanabile rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate nsk
The Group's borrowings at vanable rate are denominated in erther UK pounds or euros The Group regularty analyses s interest rate
exposure calculating the Impact on profit end loss of a defined interest rate shift Based on the calculations the Board consider refinancing,
renewal of existing positions, alternative financing and hedging The Group has not felt there has been a regquirement dunng the current or
previous financial year to enter into any of these options

In Juty 2007 the Group entered into a financing contract with Barclays Bank PLC of which the working caprtal facilbes were renewed in
March 2010, vanable interest rates were negotated on all the loans These working capital facities are due for review in July 2013 The
Board continues to monitor the interest rates monthly

For the year ended 31 January 2012, had the benchrnark interest rate levels been 0 5% higher/{lower) than the actual experience, with all
other vanables held constant, the profit before tax of the Group would have been (lower)igher by £42,000 due to the change in interest
rate expense on vanable rate borrowings The 0 5% sensitnity 1s deemed a reasonable sensitvity analysis based on expected movements
in the base rate for the next financial year

Credit nsk

Credit nsk anses from the Group's trade recevables, cash held with banks, and denvative financial nstruments It 1S the nsk that

the counterparty fals to discharge its obligation in respect of the Instrument Cash at bank and denvatve financial instruments are
predominantty held with the Group’s major relationship bank, Barclays Bank PLC, and the Group considers this credit nsk to be minimal

The Group does not have any significant credit nsk exposure to any single company or group of companies within trade recevables, as the
naturs of the Group's operatons mean that trade recevables consist of a large number of customers spread across diverse industnes and
geographical areas

Prior to accepting new customers an independent credit check 1s obtained Based on ths information ndndual creds imits and paymant
tarms are established If no ndependent credit ratngs are avalable, customers are asked to pay on a proforma basis untl creditworthiness
can be established The utiisation of credit imits is regularty morwtored Credit imits may only be exceeded with the authonsation from Key
management, this Is dependsnt on the amount expected to exceed the mit and the Group’s trading history with that customer

There 1s no difference between the carrying amount and the maxamum credit nsk exposure

Liquidrty nsk

Ligudity nsk anses from the Group's management of working capital and the finance charges and pnnaipal repayments on its debt
instruments 11s the nsk that the Group will encounter difficulty In meetng its financial obligations as they fall due The matunty profile of the
Group's debt and other financal labilites is disclosed in note 22

During the year the Group had facihes with Barclays Bank PLC A sigrificant element of the facility 1s inked to working capital, which allows
the Group to manage 1ts cash more effectvely dunng the seasonal fluctuabons in working capital associated with the industry This element
of the facility 1s due to expire In July 2013 having been renewed in March 2010

Management montors rolling forecasts of the Group's cash and loan faciity utiisation on a monthly basis The Group ensures that it has
adequate facdties avalable to cover both its short-term and medium-term comrmitments In addition, the Group's iquidity management
policy 1s to project cash flows In major currencies and consider the level of iquid assets necessary to meet these habilites as they fall due
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Caprtal nsk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are

- tosafeguard the entiies ability to continue as a going concem, so that it can provide retums for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and

- to prowde an adequate retum for shareholders by pncing products and services commensurately with the level of nisk

The Group sets the amount of caprtal in proportion to nsk The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to &t in ight of
changes in economic condiions and the nsk charactenstics of the undertying assets In order to mantan or adjust the caprtal structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dvidends pad to shareholders, return capital to sharsholders, issue new shares, buy back issued shares,
or sell assets to raducse debt

The Group monrtors caprial on the basis of the average net debt to adjusted capital ratio (or ‘geanng ratic’) The ratio 1s calculated as
average net debt dvided by adusted capital Average net debt is calculated as the total debt less cash and cash eguivalents dunng the
year Adjusted capial compnses all componerts of equity {| & share capital, share premium, retaned earnings, and other reserves) other
than amounts recognised In equity relatng to cash flow hedges and forward currency contracts

Dunng the year to 31 January 2012, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from the previous year, was to reducs the average gearng
ratio The average geanng ratios for 2012 and 2011 were as follows
Year anded 31 January

2012 2011

£000 £000
Average net debt 6,682 5,871
Total equity 23,052 21,393
Less amounts recognised directly In equity relating to currency contracts 50 63)
Adjusted capital 23,102 21,330
Average net gdebt to adjusted capital ratio 29% 28%
Year end net debt to adjusted capital ratio 2.9% 8 5%

The Group considers the average debt to adjusted equity ratio to be appropriate at this time, but it will continue to reduce the pension
defict by cash generated from operations and will also nvest within the Group through caprtal expenditure and working capital

The geanng ratio at the year end Is lower than the average geanng ratio as the level of trade debtors is lower at the year end than the
average duning the year due 1o the seasonal nature of trading 1n the months of December and January

Fair value estimation
The farr value of forward foreign exchange contracts Is determined using quoted forward exchange rates at the Balance Sheet date
provided by refationship banks Under the revisions to IFRS 7 these amounts are classified within level two of the far valus hierarchy

The carying value less impairment provision of trade recevables and payables and cash and cash equivalents are assumed to
approximate therr far values

3 Cntical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estmates and assumptions concerming future events The resulting accounting estmates will seldorn precisely equal
the related actual resutis The Group applies 1ts best endeavours In setting accounting estmates, and uses histoncal expenence and other
factors, iIncluding input from expernenced and specialist management Estmates and assumptons are penodically re-evaluated and the
resutting accounting balances updated as new information iIncluding actual outcomes becorme apparent

The estmates and assumptions that have a significant nsk of causing a matenal adjustrnent to the carmying amounts of assets and habimes
wrthin the next financial year are discussed below

a) Retirement benefit obligations

The Group recognises in obligations to employee retrement benefits The quantification of these obligations 15 subject to sigrificant
estmates and assumptions regarding life expectancy, discount and inflation rates, wage and salary changes, the rate of Increase in pension
payments, and the market values of equities, bonds and cther pension assets In making thase assumptions the Group takes acdvice from a
qualified actuary about which assumptions reflect the nature of the Group's cbligations to employee retrement benefits The assurnptions
ara regularly reviewed to ensure ther appropnateness

The Group determines the appropnate discount rate at the end of each year This 1s the interest rate that should be used to determine
the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to setfle pension obligatiens In determining the appropnats
discount rate, the Group considers the interest rates of high quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the
benefits wil be paid and that have terms to matunty approximating the terms of the related pension hability Details of the estmates and
assumptons apphed and carrying amounts of retrement benefit oblgations and pension assets, are set outin note 23
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3 Cntical accounting estimates and assumptions continued

b) iImparment of non-financiaf assets

The Group tests annually whether goodwill or its iIndefinite life Intangible asset has suffered any impairment, in accordance with s
accounting pokcy Other intangibles and property, plant and equipment are reviewad whenever mparment tnggers are apparent The
recoverable amounts of cash generating units have been determimed based on value n use ('VIU') calculations These calcutatons require
use of estimates of future sales margins and other operating and administrative expenses and of discount rates  Further disclosures relating
to the estmates and assumptions applied and camying amounts of the non-financial assets, are set out in note 14 and 15

The Group makes prowision for impairment in the camying amourt of its iInverttones and marketing matenals The nature of the Group's
products are exposed to changes In taste and attitudes frorm tme to tims, which can affect the demand for those products The Group has
shalled and expenenced management who utlise histoncal sales Information and exercise therr jJudgement, m making estmates about the
extent of provisions necessary based on the realisable value of iInventory and expected future benefit to the Group of marketing matenals
talng into account the estimated pnce and volume of future sales or usage less the further costs of sale and holding costs Further
disclosures relating 1o the effect on the Income Statement of the establishment and reversal of such provisions against inventory are
included in note 7 Detalls of the carrying amount of nventones are disclosed in note 17 and of marketing matenals in note 18

¢) Deferred tax recognrhion

Following the compietion of the Group's recovery programme and return to sustaned profitability over recent years, the Group has
considered it appropnate to recognise at the Balance Sheet date deferred tax assets resulting from histoncal trading losses and other
ternporary differences including pension deficits The amount of deferred tax recognised 1s based on estmates of the timing and amount
of future taxable profits of companies within the Group, which in tum relies upon estimates of future cperating profits and the occurrenca,
timing and tax treatment of significant items of ncoma and expenditure INcluding contnbutons 1o pension schemaes and the vesting of
share-based payment awards Further disclosures relating to the effect on the Income Staterment of the recognition of deferred tax assets
areincludad in note 12 and the amount of deferred tax asset recognised and other relevant disclosures are ncluded in note 16

d) Share-based payment awards

The Group has granted awards to Executive Directors and senior management which include vesting condrions relating to the future
financial periormance of the Group as measured by adjusted profit before tax (PBT") and the relative performance of the Group's Total
shareholder returm (TSR') against comparator companies The far value of the awards granted 1s charged aganst the Income Statement
over the vesting penod, the amount of that charge ncluding the nabonal insurance component of the charge, 1s dependent upon the
Group's estimatas of how many awards will utimately vest, which s inked directly to its estimates regarding future PBT and TSR
achievement Further disclosures relating to performance targets are inciuded in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 26 1o 28
and the effect on the financial statements of share awards 1s ncluded in note 25

4 Segmental analysis

The Group 1s a designer, manufacturer and distnbutor of luxury interiar furnishings, fabncs and wallpaper The reportable segments of the

Group are as follows

- Brands UK - comprising the design, marketing, sales and distribution and licensing activies of Marlequin, Sanderson, Zotiany and
Moms & Co brands operated from the UK

- Brands Overseas ~ compnsing the marketing, sales and distnbution operations of the Group's foreign based subsidianes in France and
the Unrted States

— Brands Total has been added to the segmental reporting to better reflect the decisions made by the CODM on resource allocation

- Manufactunng — compnsing the wall covenng and pnnted fabric manufacturing businesses operated by Anstey and Standfast
raspectivaly

This 1s the basts on which the Group presents its operating results to the Board of Directors, which s considered to be the Chief Operating
Deciston Maker ({ CODM) for the purposes of IFRS 8 Additonal revenus-only data 1s also reported to the CODM and 1s disclosed on the
basis explaned below Other group wide actvities and expenses, predominantly related to corporate head office costs, defined benefit
pension costs, long-term incentrve plans expenses, taxaton and elminations of intersegment tems, are presented within ‘Elimmnatons
and unallocated’
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4 Segmental analysis continued
a) Principal measures of profit and loss — Income Statement segmental information

Eliminations
Brands Brands Brends and
UK Overseas Total | Manufacturing unallocated Total
Year ended 31 January 2012 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
UK Revenue 33,834 - 33,834 14,043 - 47,877
International Revenue 15,125 6,870 21,995 2,554 - 24,549
Licence Revenus 1,588 - 1,568 - - 1,588
Revenue - Externat 50,547 6,870 57,417 16,597 - 74,014
Revenue - Internal - - - 12,057 (12,057) -
Total Revenue 50,547 6,870 57,417 28,654 (12,057) 74,014
Profitloss) from operations 5,869 {492) 53717 2,572 (2,394) 5,655
Net borrowing costs - - - - (254) (254)
Net pension charge - - - - (407) (407)
Profit/loss) before taxation 5,869 (492) 5,377 2,572 (3,055) 4,894
Tax charge - 38 36 - (1,101) (1,065)
Profit/lloss) for the year 5,869 (456) 5413 2,572 (4,158) 3,829
Elminaticns
Brands Brands Brands and
UK Overseas Tota | Manufactunng unalceated Total
Year ended 31 January 2011 000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
UK Revenus 32,359 - 32,359 13,313 - 45,672
International Revenue 13,124 8,607 19,731 1,940 - 21,671
Licence Revenue 1,435 - 1,435 - - 1,435
Revenue — External 46,918 6,607 53,525 15,253 - 68,778
Revenue — Internal - - - 13,629 {13.529) -
Total Revenue 45,918 6,607 53,525 28,782 (13,529) 68,778
Operating profit/{loss) before exceptional tems 5,282 {557} 4,725 2,519 (2,772 4,472
Insurance settlement 500 - 500 - - 500
Profit/loss) from operations 5,782 (557) 5,225 2,519 (2,772 4,972
Net borrowing costs - - - - (146) (146)
Net pension charge - - - - (364) {364)
Profit/loss) before taxation 5,782 (557) 5,225 2,519 (3,282) 4,462
Tax charge - - - - (1.434) {1,434)
Profit/loss) for the year 5,782 {557) 5,225 2,519 {4,716} 3,028

There was £1,435,000 {2011 £1,303,000) of intercompany sales betwean the UK and overseas brands
The segmental Income Staterment disclosures are measured n accordance with the Group's accounting policies as set out In note 1
Operating profit before and after exceptional stems 1s regularty reported to the CODM and accordingly is disclosed above

Inter segment ravenue samed by Manufactunng from sales to Brands 15 determined on nommal commercial radng terms as f Brands
were any other third party custorner Inter segment revenue eamed by Brands for sales to Overseas, via the corporate head office, are also
based on commercial trading terms

All defined benefit pension costs, and long-term incentive plan expenses, are recognised for nternal reporting to the CODM as part
of Group wide actvities and are included within ‘Eliminations and unallocated’ above Other costs, such as Group insurance, rent and
audrtor's remuneration which are incurred on a group wade basis are recharged by the head office to segments on a reasonable and
consistent basis for all penods presented and are includsed within segment results above
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4 Segmental analysis continued
b) Additional segmental revenue information

The segmental revenues of the Group are reported to the CODM in mora detall One of the analyses presented is revenue by export market

i1 the brands
2012 2011
Brands revenue by expaort market £coo £000
Western Europe 6,776 6,382
Scandinavia 1,997 1,740
Eastern Europe 2,104 1,731
Europe Total 10,877 9,853
Middle East 1,223 598
Far East 2,853 2,334
USA 5,478 5,475
South America 199 175
Australasia 770 731
Other 595 565
21,995 19,731

Revenue of the Brands repartable segment - revenue from operahons in all termtones where the sale 1s sourced from the United Kingdom
Brands operations, excluding sales to Overseas subsidianes, together with contract and licence revenus

2012 201
Brand Revenue Analysls £000 £000
Harlequin 22,426 20,537
Sanderson, Incorporating Morris & Co 19,018 17,569
Zoffany 9,103 8,812
50,547 48,918

Revenue of the Manufactuning reportable segment — including revenues from internal sales to the Group's brands
2012 201
Manufacturing Revenue Analysis £000 £000
Standfast 16,172 15,751
Anstey 13,482 13,031
28,654 28,782

Revenue of the Overseas reportable segment — revenue of the Group's overseas subsidianes from retal cperations which also includes

contract and licence revenue

2012 2011
Overseas Revonue Analysis £000 £000
United States of America 5,478 5,475
France 1,392 1,132
6,870 6,607

¢) Other income Statement segrmental information
The followng additional tems are included in the measures of profit and loss reported to the CODM and are included within {g) above

Eliminations

and
Brands Manufacturing Oversens ungllocated Total

Year ended 31 January 2012 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Depreciation 654 773 83 10 1,550
Amortisation 251 52 - - 303
Impairment losses — trade receivables 113 23 12 - 148
Reversal of impairment losses — trade recevables 4 - (3) - @
Imparrment losses - Inventory 709 33 14 - 756
Reversal of impairment of inventory - (15) - - (15)
Share-based payment charges - - - 414 414
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¢) Other Income Staternent segmental infermation continued

Eliminations

and
Brands  Manufactunng Overseas unafiocated Total
Year ended 31 January 2011 £000 £000 000 £000 £000
Depreciation 826 709 77 7 1,419
Amortisation 260 59 - - 319
Impairment losses - trade receivables 121 35 7 - 163
Reversal of prior perniod impairment losses — trade receivables - {14) - - (14)
Impairment losses - inventory 765 35 8 - 808
Reversat of mpairment of inventory - {12) - - (12)
Share-based payment charges - - - 697 897

d) Pnncipal measures of assets and habilities — Balance Sheet segmental information
Segment assets conaist pnmanty of goodwill, Intangible assets, property plant and eguipment, trade and other recevables Including inter
segment recenvables, and inventonas Segment kabilhes consist pnmanly of rade and other payables including inter segment payables
Unallocated assets and habiltias consist pnmanty of cash, deferred tax assets, borrowings, dervative financial instruments, and retirement
beneftt obligatons and elmination of inter segment balances Segment assets and habikties and unallocated assets and liabiltes are
measured In accordance with the Group’s accounting policies as set out In note 1

Eliminations
and
Brands Manutacturing Overseas unallocated Total
Year ended 31 January 2012 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Assets 34,666 16,660 953 (1,708) 50,571
Liabilities {14,784) (4,714) {3,017) (5,004) (27,519)
Total net assets/{labilities) 19,882 11,946 (2,064) (6,712) 23,052
Caprtal expenditure — Intangible assets 437 4 - - 441
Capital expenditure = Property, plant and equipment 282 269 109 37 2,097
Eiminations
and
Brands  Manufacturing Qverseas unallocated Total
Year ended 31 January 2011 £000 £000 £000 £000 €000
Assets 32,891 16,458 1,056 321 50,726
Liabilities (15,365) {5,078) (2,455) (6,435) (29,333}
Total net assets/(habilitras) 17,526 11,380 (1,399) ®B.114) 21,393
Capital expenditure — Intangible assets 600 5] - - 606
Capital expendriure — Property, plant and equipment 924 1,043 61 2 2,030
&) Addrtional entity-wide disclosures
2012 2011
Revenue by gecgraphical location of customers £000 £000
United Kingdom 48,573 46,322
Continental Europse 11,678 10,507
United States of America 7,398 7,105
Rest of the World 8,365 4,844
74,014 68,778

No single customer of the Group accounts for 10% or more of total revenue Within the sub-totals for Continental Europe and Rast of the

World shown above there are no indmdual countries that account for 10% or more of total revenue

2012

201

Non-current essets by geographical territory £000 £000
United Kingdom 15,037 14,380
Continental Europe 250 217
United States of America 137 144

15,424 14,741

Nen-current assets included above compnse intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
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5 Exceptional items

lterns that are both matenal and whose nature 1s sufficient to warrant separate disclosure and ertification are disclosed within the financial

staternents and classified within therr relevant Income Siatement category

In the current year, there are no exceptional kems

In the pnor year, a full and final payment of £500,000 was receved for an insurance settlement for a ‘loss of profits clam’ which arose from
the disruption 1o cellection launches m 2009 as a consequence of the loss of marketing products held at turd party's premises which wera

destroyed In a fire In January 2009 The amounts recerved are classifled within other operating [expensel/income

6 a) Analysis of operating profit by function of expense

2012 2011

£000 £000
Revanue 74,014 68,778
Cost of sales (30,029 (27,384)
Gross profit 43,885 41,394
Net operating expanses
Distribution and selling costs (12,716} {12,060}
Administration expenses (25,711)  (24,905)
Cther operating (expense)/income {3) 543
Net operating expenses (38,430) (36,422)
Profit from operations 5,555 4,972
6 b) Analysis of revenue by category

2012 2011

£000 £000
Sale of goods 72,426 67,343
Licence royalty ncome 1,588 1,435

74,014 68,778

6 c) Analysis of expense by nature

2012 2011

£000 £000
Changes in inventones of finished goods and work in progress {356) {2.281)
Raw matenals and consumables usad 24,934 23,474
Employee bensfit expense 20,141 20,097
Depreciation and amortisation charges 1,853 1,738
Transportation expenses 2,619 2,349
Advertising costs 1,749 1,472
Other selling costs 6,999 6,463
Establishment costs 2,938 3,441
Operating lease payments 1,817 1,883
Repairs and maintenance 1,072 1,101
Other expenses 4,690 4,612
Total cost of sales, distnbution and selling costs and administration expensas 68,456 64,349
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7 Group profit from operations

2012 201
£000 £000
Group profit from operations 1s stated after charging/(crediting)
Deprecation of property, plant and equipment 1,550 1,419
Amortisabon of intangibles 303 319
Cost of inventories recogrused as expense In cost of sales 24,578 21,193
impairment of iInventories 756 808
Reversal of impairment of inventores {15) (12)
Imparment of trade receivables 148 163
Reversal of imparrment of trade receivables ) (14
Net foreign exchangs losses/(gains) 4 {43)
Operating lease rentals
— Hire of motor vehicles and plant and machinery 434 426
- Land and bulldings 1,383 1,457
2012 2011
£000 £000
Auditor’s remuneration
- Fees payable tc Company’s auditor for the audit of parent Company and consolidated financial statements 50 50
- Audit of Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 88 79
- Taxation services 5 41
— Other accounting services 31 5
174 175
8 Net defined benefit pension charge
2012 2011
£00C £000
Expected return on pension scheme assets 2,646 2,434
Interast on pension scheme labilities (2,585) (2,542)
Scheme expenses met by Group (488) (322
Settlement gain - 66
Net charge {note 23} (407} (364)
9 Net borrowing costs
2012 201
£000 £000
Interest expense:
Interest payable on bank borrowings (230) (209)
Amortisation of 1ssue costs of bank loans (24) {25)
Cther interest and similar charges payable - -
Total borrowing expense (254) (234)
Interest income
Other Interest receivable - 88
Net borrowing costs (254) (146)

The 2011 ‘Cther interest recaivable’ includes £86,000 in respect of interest on the recovery of VAT refunded by HMRC in respect of
expenses ncurred on the issue of shares N earlier years 1t further ncludes £2,000 in respect of nterest receved on bank deposits There

was nc interest recetvable in 2012
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10 Emoluments of Directors

Sub total
apgregate 2012 20m
Salary Bonus LTP Benefits  emoluments Pensicn Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Executive Directors
John Sach 231 162 244 2 639 35 674 428
David Smallndge 183 128 174 1 486 27 513 310
Alan Dix 132 49 139 2 322 13 335 216
Non-executive Directors
Terry Stannard 62 - - - 62 - 62 80
Fiona Goldsmith 27 - - - 27 - 27 27
635 339 557 5 1,636 75 1,611 1,041

In both years, retrament benefits were aceruing to one Director undar a defined benefit scheme, who 1s the highest pad Director Accrued
annual pensicn benefits at the year end were £11,570 (2011 £11,072) Benefits are accrung under defined contribution schemes for thres

Directors (2011 three Directors)

Further information on the remuneration of the Directors is included in the Directors’ Remuneration Report set out on pages 26 1o 28

11 Employee Information

2012 2011
£000 £000
Wages and salanes 17,253 16,955
Social security costs 1,976 1,758
Other pension costs 498 687
Share-based payment awards, inciuding NIC thereon 414 697
Employes benefit expense 20,141 20,097
2012 2011
The average monthly number of employees {including Directors) during the year Numbaer Number
Brands, including warehousing 233 211
Manufacturing 303 285
Overseas 26 32
Corpoerate and adminmstration 20 22
582 550

Compensation of key management personnel
2012 20Mm
£000 £000
Short-term employeea benefits {including short-term incentives) 2,911 2,921
Post employment benefits (including pension costs) 145 130
Share-based payment awards 1414 697
3,470 3,748

The Group regards s key management personnel to be its Direciors and senior management having authorty and responsibility for planning,
diracting and controling the actviies of the Group, erther directly or indirectly Share-based payment awards reflects the charge n the income

Staterment and does not reflect the market value of shares expected to vest.
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2012 2014
£o0o £000
Current tax
- overseas, current tax (15) 13
— overseas, adjustment In respect of pnor year 36 -
Current tax 21 (13)
Deferrad tax
— current year (933) (1,339)
- adjustment in respect of prior year 7 2
- effect of change in corporation tax rate to 25% (160) (80)
Deferred tax (1,088) (1,421)
Tax charge for the year {1,065) {1,434)
Reconciiation of tax charge for the year
2012 20m
£000 £000
Profit on ordinary activittes before tax 4,894 4,462
Tax on profit on ordinary actmities at standard rate 26% (2011 28%) (1,272) (1,249)
Non-deductibte expenditure (32) @31}
Parent and overseas losses and temporary timing differences not recognised 356 (72)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 43 (2)
Eftect of change in corporation tax rate to 25% {160) (80)
Tax charge for year {1,065) (1,434}

Factors affecting current and future tax charges

No UK corporation tax 1s anticipated 1o become payable within the immadiate future due to the avalabiity of gross tax losses of

approxmately £12 6 milhion (2011 £16 2 mithon}

No overseas taxation 1s anticipated 1o becoms payable withwn the immediate future due to the avallabilty of gross tax losses of

approximately £17 millon 2011 £1 5 million)

Legislation has now been substantively enacted to reduce the main corporation tax rate to 25% from 1 Apnl 2012

However included within the recent Budgst statement by the Chancellor of the Exchequer were vanous changes to corporation tax and
in particular to the rates to be applied from 1 Apnl 2012 A further reduction of 1% t0 24% has been propased from 1 Apni 2012 The main
carporation tax rate from that date will be 24% In additon, 1t was announced that the rate will be reduced by 1% per annum to attan a rate

of 22% by 1 Apnl 2014

Accordingly, the deferred tax balance at 31 January 2012, included within these financial statsments, which was calculated at arate
of 25%, being the rate enacted in tha Finance Act (2011), would be reduced by £43,000 assurming that the proposed rate of 24% from
1 Apnt 2012 15 enacted This reduction will be recogrused in the financial statements for the year ended 31 January 2013

The further reductions 1o a rate of 22%, assuming that these are formally enacted, would result In a decrease in the deferred tax balance at
31 January 2012 of £129,000 The deferred tax asset balance will be adjusted, I the financial year that the change in the corporation tax

rate 1s substantvely enacted by Parllament
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13 Eamings per share

Basic and diluted eamings per share {EPS'} 1s calculated by dvding the eamings attnbutable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted
average number of shares outstanding dunng the year, excluding those held in the employee benefit trust (EBT’) and those held in treasury
{(note 25), which are treated as cancelled

2012 2011
Weighted Weighted
average average
number of Pershare number of Per share
Earnings shares amount Earnings. shares amaount
£000 (D00s) pence £000 (000s) pence
Basic and diluted earnings per share 3,829 56,655 6.76 3,028 56,491 536

Walker Greenbank’s issued ordinary share capital with voting nghits consists of 59,006,162 (2011 59,006,162} ordinary shares of which
960,000 (2011 960,000) ordinary shares are held in treasury and a further 1,093,541 (2011 1,852,445) ordinary shares are held by the
Walker Greenbank PLC Employee Benefit Trust (EBT') with a cost of £224,638 {2011 £380,534) Shares held in treasury or by the EBT are
treated as cancelled when calculating EPS

The market value of shares held by the EBT at 31 January 2012 was £565,907 {2011 £981,796)

The total number of sharas held in freasury at the year and represented 1 63% {2011 163%) of the issued shares The markst valus of
these shares at 31 January 2012 was £496,800 (2011 £508,800)

14 Intangible assets

Arthur
Sanderson
and Willlam
Morris Collection
Goodwill Archive design Softwera Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
1 February 2010 1,400 4,300 1,184 4,820 11,704
Addrtions - - 282 324 606
Disposals - - (226) - (2286)
31 January 2011 1,400 4,300 1,240 5,144 12,084
Additions - - 244 197 441
Disposals - - 27) - 27)
31 January 2012 1,400 4,300 1,457 5,341 12,498
Amortisation
1 Fabruary 2010 841 - 599 4,577 6,017
Charge - - 234 85 319
Disposals - - (225) - (225)
31 January 2011 841 - 608 4,662 6,111
Charge - - 247 58 303
Disposals - - 27) - 27)
31 January 2012 841 - 828 4,718 6,387
Net book amount
31 January 2012 559 4,300 629 623 6,111
31 January 2011 559 4,300 632 482 5,973
31 January 2010 559 4,300 585 243 5,687

The Arthur Sanderson and Wilkam Moms Archive was purchased as part of the acquisrion of Arthur Sanderson & Sons on 29 August 2003
it compnses an histonical record of unique designs that are used to generate royalty ncome in the business

The total amortisation expense of £303,000 (2011 £319,000) 1s included n administration expenses £293,000 (2011 £300,000) and
distnbution and seling costs £10,000 (2011 £19,000)
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14 Intangible assets continued

Impairment tests for Goodwill and Arthur Sanderson and Willram Morns Archive

The camying value of Goodwill at the year end of £5659,000 (2011 £558,000) 1s attnbutable to the manufactunng segment The Archive 1s
attnbutable to the Brands

The Group tests Goodwil and the Archive for impairment annwally or rore frequently if there are indications that they might be impaired
There was no mpaiment charge recognised in the year (2011 £nif)

In assessing whether an impairment of goodwall is required the carmying value of the cash generative unit (CGU') or group of CGUs 1s
compared with its recoverable amount The recoverable amounts for each CGU and collectively for groups of CGUs that make up the
segments of the Group's business have been based on the value in use (‘VIU')

The Group eshmates the VIU using a discounted cash flow model { DCF), where the projected cash flows for separate or collective groups
of CGUs are discounted using a pre-tax rate of 6 57% (2011 735%) The discount rate used 1s the same across all segments

The Group has used formally approved budgets for the first two years (2011 two years) of its VIU calculaton, wath extrapolabon beyond the last
explict year using an assumpton of growth for future years ranging from 1% o 2% (2011 1% to 2%) depending upon the CGU baing tested

The cash flows used n the calculation of the VIU are denvad from past expenence and are based on operating profit forecasts, which in
turn rely upon assumptions relating to sales growth, margins and operating and administrative expenses  The cash flows have not included
the benefits ansing from any future asset enhancement expenditure, as this 1s not permitted by IAS 36 The VIU calculations therefore
exclude significant benefits anticipated from future capital expenditure The growth rates included within the assumptions supporting the
VIU calculatons do net therefore represent the Group's anticipated total forecast growth, but rather only the growth deming from caprtal
axpenditure completed at the Balance Sheet date

The recoverable amount of the Archive intangible asset s estimated based on VIU, and comprnises estimated future cash flows from royalty
incomg relating to the Archive A discount rate of 6 57% (2011 7 35%) 1s applied

The Group does not consider it reasonably probable that any significant changes to the key assumptons will anse that woutd result in
impament of ether Goodwill or the Archive as at 31 January 2012

15 Property, plant and equipment
Plant
Lard and aquipment Computer

buldings  and vehicles hardware Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
1 February 2010 5,404 16,470 1,336 23,210
Additions - 1,718 3i2 2,030
Disposals - {943} (294} {1,237}
Currency movements - {3} - (3
31 January 201 5,404 17,242 1,354 24,000
Additons - 1,931 166 2,097
Disposals - (213) — {213}
31 January 2012 5,404 18,960 1,520 25,884
Deapreciation
1 Fabruary 2010 1,201 12,600 1,249 15,080
Charge 100 1,218 101 1,419
Disposals - (943) (294) {1,237)
31 January 2011 1,301 12,875 1,056 15,232
Charge 103 1,326 121 1,580
Disposals - (213) - (213)
Currency movements - 2 - 2
31 January 2012 1,404 13,990 1,177 16,571
Net book amount
31 January 2012 4,000 4,970 343 9,313
31 January 2011 4,103 4,367 298 8,768
31 January 2010 4,203 3,870 87 8,160

The total depreciation expense of £1,550,000 (2011 £1,419,000} 1s ncluded in adrministration expensas £1,507,000 (2011 £1,400,000) and
distribution and selling costs £43,000 (2011 £19,000}
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15 Property, plant and equipment continued

2012 20m
The net book amount of land and buildings comprises £000 £000
Freehold land 450 450
Freehold buildings 3,550 3,653
Net book amount 4,000 4,103

Land and buildings are stated at historical cost

All of the Groups banking facilites remain secured by a fixed and floating charge over the carmyng value of assets (land and buldings) of
£4,000,000 (2011 £4,103,000)

16 Deferred Income tax assets N

A deferred tax asset of £2,850,000 (2011 £3,982,000) 1s recognised in respect of tax losses and other temporary differences and
£1,086,000 2011 £1,421,000} has been charged to the Income Statemert dunng the year as some af the tax losses have been utiised

2012 2611
£006 £000
Taxabile temporary differences on property, plant and equipment {849) (776)
Taxable temporary differences on intangible assets {(171) (164)
Other temporary differences 107 38
Unutilised tax losses 1,989 3,063
1,076 2,161
Retrement benefit obligations 1,774 1,821

2,850 3,982

The movements In the deferrad tax asset on retrement benefit obligations ara recognised in the Statemant of Comprehensive Income

At the Balance Sheet date the Group has grass unused UK tax losses of £12 6 milion (2011 £16 2 milion) avallable for offset aganst future
profits A deferrad tax asset of £2 0 million 2011 £31 milkon}1s recogrised in respect of £8 0 million (2011 €11 3 mullon) of such losses as
the Group believes that realisanon of the related tax benefit through future taxable profit 1s probable and can be readily accessed under
axisting tax legislation

Note 12 details the impact of the changes to the main rates of corporation tax announced n the recent Budget on the deferred tax asset
set out above

Potential deferred tax assets at 31 January 2012 of £1,939,000 (2011 £2,329,000} relating o tax losses and deductble temporary

differences have not been recognised as itis not considered probable that recovery of the potential deferred tax asset will anise under

axisting tax legislaton These are summansed in the table below and compnse the following

- No deferred tax has been recogrised on £4 6 millon (2011 £4 9 millkon) of gross UK losses as these are not readity avallable for offset
against the Group's future profits under existing tax legislation and therefore the realisation of these losses 1s not considered probable

— Inaddrtion, there are gross tax losses In Overseas subsidianes of £1,757,000 (2011 £1,482,000) which are avallable for offset aganst
future taxable profits by those subsidianes However, the realisation of these losses s not considered probable in the foreseeable future

~ Other deductible termporary diferences which predominantly anse on share-based payments reserves

2012 201
£000 £000
Unutiised tax losses - UK 1,159 1,320
Unuhhsed tax losses ~ Overseas 611 519
Other deductible temporary differences — UK 169 490

1,939 2,329

As detailad in note 12 the man rate of corporation tax 1S to reduce to 22% by 1 Apnl 2014 | these changes are enacted then the
unrecognised deferred tax asset noted above would reduce by £159,000

There are alsc unutlised caprial tax losses at 31 January 2012 of £2,485,000 (2011 £2,485,000) but no deferred tax asset has bean
reccgnised as its not considered probable that these losses will be utilsed
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17 Inventones

2012 20m

2000 £000
Raw matenals 1,858 1,446
Work In progress 972 1,287
Finished goods 14,170 12,897

17,000 15,630

The cost of nventonies recognised as an expsense and included in cost of sales amounted to £24,578,000 (2011 £21,193,000)

The value of nventones providing security under the Barclays Bank PLC facirty, if t wers to be fully drawn, was £11,379,000 (2011
£10,834,000) This facility was not utilised at erther year end

18 Trade and other recewables

2012 2011
Current £000 £000
Trade recevables 9,574 10,075
Less Prowision for mparrment of trade recevables {487) {515)
Net trade receivables 9,087 9,560
Other racaivables 516 595
Markating materials 2,088 2,894
Prepayments 1,378 1,334

13,047 14,383

The value of trade recevables providing funding under the Barclays facility was £7,224,000 (2011 £7,276,000)
There 1s no matenal differance between the carrying amount and the farr value of the trade and ather recenvables

Credrt quality of financial assets

{7 Netther past due nor immpaired

Included in the Group's trade recevable balances are debtors with a carrying value of £5,615,000 {2011 £5,538,000) which are nerther past
due nor Imparred at the reporting date The nature of the Group's business means that it has a long standing relationship with the majority
of ts customers, who erther have no expenence of histoncal default or onfy temporary late payments with full recovery of balances due

For the Group's cash at bank, and the recevable component of dervative financial nstruments, the counterparty to the financial
nstruments is a major UK bank and the Group does not consider there to be any significant credit nsk from holding these financial assets

(i) Past due — not indvidually impaired

Included i the Group’s trade recervable balances are debtors with a carrying value of £3,721,000 (2011 £4,117,000) which are past due at
the reporting date for which the Group does not consider the need to ¢reate a specific impairment provision aganst indmvidually identfied
debtor The table below shows the aging analysis of the recevables

2012 201

£000 £000
1=30 days past due 1,816 1,931
31-60 days past due 1,508 1,692
61-90 days past due 370 347
91+ days past due 27 147

3,721 4,117

The Directors believe however, that in the current economic environment there is objective evidence of cradit detanoration and an
impaiment of £314,000 {2011 £253,000} representing a collective assessment of nsk against debtors that are yat to be specifically
dentified Duse to the nature of the Group's products, therets a limited amount of inventory left In the possession of customaers that could
act as collateral under terms of trade  As the value of this Inventory 1s immatenal, it has not been disclosed in the financial staterments

(i} Past due — indmdually impaired

As at 31 January 2012, trade recenables of £238,000 (2011 £420,000) wers indivdually deterrmined to be mparred and provided for

The amount of the provision was £173,000 (2011 £262,000) The man factors used to assess the imparment of trads recevables 1s the
age of the balance and crcumstances ¢f the indmwdual customer it has been assessed that a proportion of the recevables 1s expected to
be recovered
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18 Trade and other receivables continued
(i) Past due - indvidually impaired continued
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies

2012 2011
£000 £000

Sterling 8,103 8,252
Dollars 16 252
Euros 1,351 1,657
Other 133 94
9,603 10,155

The Group considers that any exposure to concantratons of credit nsk wall be impacted pnncipally by undertying economic condibons in
the pnncipal geographical termtones in which the Group operates As at the Balance Sheet date the camyng value of trade recervablss by

geographical temtory of the custorner was

2012

20M

£000 £000
United Kingdom 6,610 6,783
Continental Eurcpe 1,497 1,522
United States of America 195 535
Rest of the World 785 720
9,087 9,560
Provistons for impairnent
Moverments on the Group provision for mparment of trade recevables are as follows
2012 2011
£000 £000
At 1 February (515) (408)
Prowvision for recevables mpaired (148) (163)
Receivables wntten off in the year as uncollectible 168 44
Unused amounts reversed 7 14
Exchange difference 1 @
At 31 January {487) {515}
The creaton and release of provisions for impared trade recevables have been included within distnbution and selling costs in the
Income Staterment
19 Denvative financial instruments
2012 201
£000 £000
Forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges - (lability)/asset (50) 63
Swap contract - cash flow hedges — asset 54 -

Forward foreign exchange contracts

The Group's US based subsidiary, Walker Greenbank Inc, sells products to local customers with sales invoiced In US dollars As the

Group's presentation currency 1s sterling it 1s exposed to changes n the reported sterling value of these sales The Group considers that it 1s

highly probable that future sales of this nature will continue to anse over at least the next 12 months

Dunng the year the Company has entared into monthly forward foreign exchange contracts up to June 2013, with a third party, to buy
sterling and sell dollars The Group has designated these contracts as cash flow hedges of the foreign currency nsk ansing from the highly
probable future forecast sales fransactions As at the reporting date the far value of the forward foreign contracts relating to the benefit on

these anticipated future transactions 1 a liabity of £50,000 (2011 asset of £63,000)

The amounts deferred in equity will be released into the Income Statermnent in the penod or penods dunng which the hedged forecast

transactions impact the Income Statement, which 1s expected to be within 15 months of the Balance Sheet date

Tha Brands make more purchases frorn the auro zone than sales made to the euro zone As the Group's presentation curency 1S sterling it

Is exposed to changes In the reported sterling value of the purchases The Group considers that the level of this exposure will reduce over

the next 12 months As at the reporting date there were no forward foreign currency contracts

Swap foreign exchange contracts

The Group uses swap contracts to manage its working capital exchange nsk from both the foreign subsidianes and the balances on
debtors, credtors and cash held in foreign cumrency These swap contracts are designated as Far Valus through the Income Statement
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19 Denvative financial instruments cortinued
Swap foreign exchange contracts continued
The use of swaps are reviewed monthly and renewed when necessary

The swap contract held at the Balance Shast date was closed on 13 February 2012 There were no swap contracts held at the year ended
31 January 2011

20 Cash and cash equivalents

2012 2011
£000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 2,197 1,927

There s a set off arrangement for bank accounts held with the UK cleanng bank and accordingly the amounts stated above represent the
net of accounts in funds and in overdraft

21 Trade and other payables

2012 2011

£000 £000
Trade payables 10,461 11,731
Corporation tax - 38
QOther taxes and social security 1,385 1,243
Other payables and deferred revenue 358 788
Accruals 5,307 5,049

17,511 18847

22 Borrowings

2012 201
£000 £000
Current

Term loan 400 400
400 400

Non-Current.
Term loan 1,784 2,183
Trade recevables loan 680 1,161
2,464 3,344
Total borrowings 2,864 3,744

In March 2010, the Group agreed terms 1o renew the Recevables and Inventory facilities from Barclays Bank PLC The total faciites

from Barclays Bank PLC compnses a vanable rate Term Loan secured on the Group's freehold property which is being repaid on a 10 year
profile and Recevables and Inventory Financing Agreements which provide three year vanable rate floatng loans secured on the eligible
trade receivables and eligible nventones at any point i tme ({the working capital facimes) The worlang capial facilites may be drawn down
In erther sterling or euro

The total Barclays Bank PLC facilties are capped at £16 5 milion (2011 £16 5 milion)}, the utilsation of the facites at the year end was
£2,864,000 (2011 £3,744,000) The term loan bears imerest at vanable rates based on a margin above the Bank of England base rate
The working capital faciiies bear finance costs in the form of discount charges which are calculated penodically and vary at marging
above the base rate published by Bank of England {for stering loans) or the European Central Bank (for euro loans)

Under the Barclays Bank PLC facities, the Group 1s subject to finangial covenants which appty to the term loan, being interest cover

and debt senice The recevables and inventory financing agreements require compliance with a number of operational covenants Any
non-compliance with covenants cauld, if not remedied or waived, constitute an event of default with respect to any such arrangements
The Group has reported to Barclays Bank PLC that it was in full complance with its financial and operaticnal covenants threughout each
of the periods presented
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22 Bomowings continued

The farr value of current borrowings equal therr camying amount, as the mpact of discounting is not significant The carrying armounts and

far value of the non-curment boraowangs are as follows

Carrying amount Farr Value
2012 2011 2042 201
£000 £00C £000 £000
Term loan 1,784 2,183 1,800 2,200
Trade recevables loan 680 1,161 711 1,213
2,464 3,344 2,511 3,413

The far values are based on cash flows discounted using a weighted averags rate based on the borrowng rate of 175% (2011 1 75%)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial habiliies inte relevant matunty groupings based on the remaining penod to contractual
maturty at the Balance Sheet date The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows The maturty profile

of undiscounted cash flows on vanable interest rate borrowings has assumed interest rates as at the Balance Sheet date

Less than Betweon Between Over
iyear 1to2years 2to5yeoars 5 years
3 January 2012 £000 £000 £coo £000
Borrowings 1,111 821 1,068 -
Trade and other payables 16,126 - - -
17,237 821 1,068 -
Less than Betwaen Between Crver
1 year 110 2 years 2to Syears 5 years
31 Janwary 2011 £000 £00C £000 £000
Borrowings 1,613 821 1,286 222
Trade and other payables 17,566 - - -
19,179 821 1,286 222

The carmying amounts of the Group's borrowings are denomtnated in the following curencies
2012 2015
£000 £000
Sterling 2,864 3,744

23 Retirement benefit obhgations
Defined contribution schemes

The Group contnbutes fo the defined contnbution section of the Abans Holdings Limited Pension Scheme and to a Group Personal
Pension Plan which s also a defined contnbution schermme  Contributions are charged to the Income Statement as incurred and amounted

to £451,000 {2011 £365,000) Active members of the schemes are also able to make contributons

Defined benefit schemes

The Group operates the following funded defined benefit pension schemaes in the UK which offer pensions on retirement and death

benefits to members the Walker Greenbank Pension Plan and the Abans Holdings Limited Pension Scheme The WG Senior Management

Pension Scherne was effectivaly closed dunng the year Pension benefits are related to the members’ salary at retrement and therr length

of service The schemes are closed to new members and the future accrual of benefits

The most recent finaised tnenrial funding valuation for the defined benefit schemes was Apnl 2009 with an updated funding valuaton
performed as at Apnl 2010 An updated valuabon for 1AS 18 financial reporting purposes has been completed at the Balance Sheet date

The Group's contnbutions to the schemas for the year beginning 1 February 2012 are expected to be £1,583,000

2012 201
Discount rate 4 60% 5 60%
Rate of salary increase 2 90% 3 40%
Rate of Increase to LP| pensions in payment 290% 3 30%
Rate of Increase to pensions (in excess of GMP) in deferment 2 10% 3 40%
Rate of inflation 2 90% 3 40%
Expected return on plan assets 590% 6 60%
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23 Retrement benefit obhgations continued
Defined benefit schemes continued
The principal assumptions applied when valuing the defined benefit schemes were

Members are assumed to commute 25% of their pension (2011 25%)

The assumptions used in determining the overall expected return on assets of the scheme have been set with reference to yields available

on government bonds and appropnate nsk margns for eguties and other classes of assets

The mortality assumptions applied, in both years, are based on the Self Administered Pension Scheme with medium cohort effect and a
floor of 19% p a on future mortality mproverments The mortality assumptions imply the expected future Ifetime from age 65 as follows

2012 2011
Non-pensioner male currently 45 234 232
Pensicner male currently 65 215 213
Non-psnsioner female currently 45 282 260
Pensioner fernale currently 65 243 24 1
The amourts recorded in the Balance Sheet are determined as follows
2012 201
£000 £000
Equities 23,878 25,674
Fixed interest 21,973 13,301
Insured annuities 1,275 1,257
Cash and other 212 170
Farr value of plan assets 47,338 40,302
Present value of funded defined benefit obligations (54,433) (47,044)
Net liability in Balance Sheet (7,095) {6.742)
Reconcihation of opeming and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation
2012 201
£000 £000
Benesfit cbligation at beginning of year 47,044 48,5630
Scheme expenses 488 322
Interast cost 2,565 2,542
Actuanal loss - other 6,864 1,569
Removal of habilities In Senicr Management Scheme - (1,322)
Benefits paid {2,528) (2.587)
Benefit obligation at end of year 54,433 47,044
Reconcihiation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets
2012 2011
£000 £000
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year - 40,302 38,687
Expected return on plan assets 2,846 2,434
Actuanal gan 5,460 1,718
Contnbutions by employers 1,458 1,360
Enhanced transfer costs - 46
Removal of scheme assets in Senior Management Schame - (1,256)
Benefits paid (2,528) (2,587)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 47,338 40,302
The amourtts recognised iIn the Income Staterment are
2012 201
£'000 £ 000
Scheme expenses 488 322
Settlement gan - (66}
Intersst on obligation 2,565 2,542
Expected return on plan assets {2,646) (2,434)
Net defined benefit pension charge 407 364
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23 Retirement benefit obligations continued
Reconcihation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets continued

The Group no longer has any remaining obligations in respect of Tha Walker Greenbank Senior Management Pension Scheme as the two
remaining deferred members accepted enhanced transfer values dunng prior year A net settlement gain of £66,000 was included wrthin

net defined benefit costs of the pnor year
The actual retum on assets over the pencd was a gain of £8,106,000 (2011 gan of £4,152,000)

Actuaral gains and (losses) racogmised in Statement of Comprehensive Income
2012

201

£000 £000
Actual return on schemse assets higher than expected return 5,480 1,718
Other actuanal losses on scheme habiliiies (6,864) {1,559}

(1,404) 159

Other actuarial losses on scheme kabilites in the penod anse mainly from decreases in the discount rate and higher inflation assumptions

used In determining the present valus of scheme liabilites

The cumutative amount of actuanal losses reported In the Staternent of Comprehensive Income before deferred taxation was £22,130,000

(2011 £20,726,000)

History of schemes’ assets, obligations and expenence adjustments

2012 2011 2010 2008 2008

£000 £000 £000 £000 2000
Present value of defined benefit obligation (54,433) (47,044) (46,530) (39,224} (44,260
Fair value of scheme's asssets 47,338 40,302 38,587 35,063 40,851
Deficit in the schemes (7,095) 6,742) (7,943) (4,161} (3,409)
Expernence adjustments ansing on scheme liabilities (6,864) {1,659) (7,694) 5,458 2,064
Experience adjustments ansing on scheme assets 5,460 1,718 2,665 (7,458) (1,364)




al

WALKER GREENBANK PLC
Annual Report and Accounts 2012

24 Financial instruments by category
The accounting policies for financial nstruments have been applied to the Ine tems below:

Derivatives
Loans and Assets usod for
recelvables et fair vatlue hadging Total
31 January 2012 £000 £000 £000 £000
Assets as per Balance Sheet
Denvative financial instruments - - 54 54
Trade and other recevables 9,603 - - 9,603
Cash and cash equivalents 2,197 - - 2,197
Total 11,800 - 54 11,854
Other  Derlvatives
Llabilties financlal used for
atfair value labilities hadging Total
31 January 2012 £000 £000 £000 £000
Lialities as per Balance Sheet
Dervative financial nstruments - - 50 50
Borrowings - 2,864 - 2,864
Trade and other payables - 16,126 - 16,126
Total - 18,990 50 19,040
Dearivatives
Loans and Assels used for
recelvables  at falr value hedging Totat
31 January 2011 £000 £000 £000 £000
Assets as per Balance Sheet
Derivative financial instruments - - 63 63
Trade and other recevables 10,155 - - 10,155
Cash and cash equivalents 1,927 - - 1,827
Total 12,082 - 63 12,145
Other Dertvatives
Ligbilties financial used for
at falr valua llabRues hedging Total
31 January 2011 £000 £000 £000 £000
Liabilities as per Balance Sheet
Borrowings - 3,744 - 3,744
Trade and other payables - 17,568 - 17,566
- 21,310 - 21,310
25 Share Capital
Number
COrdinary shares of 1p each of shares £
Authenised share capital
1 February 2010, 31 January 2011 and 31 January 2012 85,000,000 850,000
Allotted, called up and fully pard
1 February 2010, 31 January 2011 and 31 January 2012 59,006,162 590,062

All heiders of ordinary shares have the nght 1o vote at general meetings of the Company and to distnbutions from dwvidends or on winding
up of the Company

Walker Greenbank’s 1ssued ordinary share caprtal with voting nghts congists of 59,006,162 (2011 59,006,162) ordinary shares of which
960,000 (2011 960,000} orcinary shares are held In treasury and a further 1,093,541 (2011 1,852,445) ordinary shares are held by the
Walker Greenbank PLC Employee Benefit Trust ({EBT') with a cost of £224,638 (2011 £380,534) Shares held in treasury or by the EBT
are treated as cancelled when calculating earmings per share

The market value of shares held by the EBT at 31 January 2012 of £5665,907 (2011 £881,796)

The total number of shares held in treasury at the year end representad 1 83% (2011 1 63%) of the 1ssued shares The market value of these
shares at 31 January 2012 was £496,800 (2011 £508,800)

The shares held by the EBT and the treasury shares are held for the purpose of satisfying awards under long-term incentive plans o
Executive Directors and senior managerment
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25 Share Capital continued

Long-Term Incentive Plans (‘LTIPs’}

The Group operates a Long-Term Inceritive Plan There have been five awards under this ptan, in which Executive Directors and senor
management of the Group participate The first award vested dunng 2009 and the second vested during 2011 The LTIP has previously
been approved by the shareholders at an Annual General Meeting

Awards under the scheme are granted in the form of nil-priced share options, and are to be satisfied etther using market-purchased shares
or by the issuing of new shares The awards vest In full or n part dependent on the satsfacton of specified performance targets at the end
of the vesting penod applying to each plan The number of awards that vest is dependent upon both the adusted profit befors tax ('PBT)
achieved for the relevant year or the Group's Total Shareholder Return { TSR’} dunng the vesting penod within a comparator group

Detalls are set out below

Award Throo Award Four Award Five
Grant date of awards 27 May 2009 20 May 2010 18 May 2011
Grant date farr value of award {pence per award) 792 18 00 2522
Vesting date of awards 25 May 2012 17 May 2013 19 May 2014
Maximurm number of awards 2,150,000 2,102,000 1,864,663
Vestng condition based on TSR with PBT floor TSR with PBT floor TSR with PBT floor

Relevant date for determination of vesting conditions TSR as at 27 May 2012 TSR asat 17 May 2013 TSR as at 19 May 2014
PBT for year ending PBT for year ending PBT for year ending
31 January 2012 31 January 2013 31 January 2014

Further details of vesting conditions are set out In the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 26 to 28

The far value at grant date of Award Two was estimated based on the share pnce of the Group at grant date Award’s Three and Four
nclude vesting condiions that are market based and allowancs for these are Included within the farr value at grant date The weighted
average farr value of options grarted dunng the penod {Award Five} determined using the Monte-Carlo valuation model was 25 22p per
option The significant Inputs into the model were weighted average share pnce of 49 Op at the grant date, exercise prnice shown above,
dvidend yield of 194%, an expected option ife of three years and an annual nsk-free interest rate of 152% The volatiity measurad at the
standard deviation of continuously compounded share returns is based on statistcal analysis of day share prces over the last three years
See nate 11 for the total expense recognised N the Income Statement for share options granted 1o Directors and employees

Movernents in the number of awards outstanding, assurming maximum achievement of vasting condmons are as follows

202 201
Number Number
At 1 February 5,667,093 3,565,093
Granted 1,864,663 2,102,000
Exercised (1,415,093} -
At 31 January 6,116,663 5,667,093
26 Capital reserve
Capital reserva reprosants £000
Share premium of comparues acquired under merger accounting principles 1,276
Caprtal reserve arising on consohdation 293
Capital redemption reserve on capital restruciunngs 41,888
At 31 January 2012 and 2011 43,457

27 Dividends
Dunng the year, the Group has paid a final dwdend for the year to 31 January 2011 and an intenm dividend of O 20p for the year to
31 January 2012 (2011 015p)

The Group wailt contnue to Invest in the future growth of the business and to continue to pay dvidends

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dvidend of 1 00p per share (2011 O BOp per share) which will be payable on 10 August
2012 to shareholders on the register at 13 July 2012 This brngs the total dvidend for the year to 1 20p (2011 0 95p)
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28 Cash generated from operations

2012 2012 2011 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000
Profit before tax 4,894 4,462
Defined benefit pension charge 407 364
Net borrowing costs 254 146
Depreciation 1,550 1,418
Amorisation 303 319
Charge for long-term incentive plan racognised in equity 353 493
Tax paid on vesting of LTIP 2 (348) -
Unrealised foreign exchange losses in¢luded in operating profit (39) 9
Defined benefit pension cash contributions (1,458) {(1,406)
Changes in working capital
{Increass) In INventorias {1,370) (2,392)
Decrease/(increass) in trade and other recewables 1,282 (3,962)
{Decrease)/increase 1n trade and other payables (1,298) 5,004
(364) (6)
Cash generated from operattons 4,530 4,456
29 Analysis of net debt
Current
Working portion Crher
1 February Capltal of term non cash Exchange 31 January
201 Cash flow faciities facimes changes maovemant 2012
£000 £000 £000 5000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and cash equivalent 1,927 270 - - - - 2,197
Borrowings dus within one year (400) 400 - (400) - - (400)
Borrowings dus after one year (3.344) 504 - 400 24) - (2,464)
(3,744) 904 - - 24) - (2,864)
Net debt {(1.817) 1,174 - - (24) - (667)
Other non-cash changes are caprtalisation and amortisasion of the 1ssue costs relating to the borrowings
30 Commitments
a) Caprtal commiiments
Caprial expendrture contractad for at the Balance Sheet date but not yet iIncurred 1s as folows
2012 2011
£000 £000
Property, plant and equipment 137 582

b) Lease Commitments

Operating lease payments reprasent rentals payable by the Group for certan office properties Land and building leases are negotiated for
an average of 14 years and rentals are fixed for an average of five years Other leases are negotiated for an average term of three years and

rentals are fixed for an average of three years

Total commitments due under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

Land and Land and
buildings Other butidings Qther
2012 2012 201 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000
Within one year 1,435 378 1,416 329
Between one and five years 4,433 359 4,671 308
Over five years 6,487 - 3,553 7
12,355 737 9,640 644

Other leases include hire of plant, machinery and motor vehicles
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31 Principal subssdiary undertakings
The pnncipal Group operating companies that traded dunng the vear, and are wholly owned, and which are included in these consolidated
financial statements are as follows

Abars Haldings Limited - ragistered in England and Wales
Walker Greenbank Inc* - Incorporated in the USA

Arthur Sanderson & Sons Inc” - Incorporated in the USA

Arthur Sanderson & Sons SARL - Incorperated in France

“Shares held by subsidiary company

For a full list of subsidiary comparies, please contact the Company Secretary at the Group registered address
Imvestments N Group companias are ordinary shares

The pnncipal actviies of the Group are design, manufacture, marksting and distnbution of wallcovenngs, furnishing fabnes and associated
products for the consumer market
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF WALKER GREENBANK PLC

We have audited the parent Company financial statements of Walker
Groenbank PLC for the year ended 31 January 2012 which compnse
the Compary Balance Sheet and the related notes The financial
raporing frarnework that has been appled in thewr preparaton &
applicable law and United Kingdom Accountng Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountng Practice)

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully In the Statement of Directors'
Responsibiities, the Directors are respensible for the preparation
of the parent Company financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and far view Our responsibility 1s to audit and
axpress an opinion on the parent Company financial statements

In accordance with applicable law and Intematicnal Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland} Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, Including the opinions, has been prepared for and

only for the Company's members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other
purpose Wa do not, in gvng thesa opinions, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpese or to any other person to whom
this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where
axpressly agread by our pror consent inwnting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit nvolves cbtaning evdence about the amounts and
disclosures In the financial staterments sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement, whather caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whather the accounting policies are appropnate to
the parent Company's circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigrificant
accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall
prasentation of the financial statements In additon, we read all
the financal and non-financial Information n the annual report

to identfy matenal Incansistencies with the audited financial
stataments If we become aware of any apparent matenal
misstatemants or Inconsistencies we consider the mplications

for our raport

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinicn the parent Company financial staterments

- gwve atrue and far view of the state of the Company's affars
as at 31 January 2012,

- have been properly prepared In accordance with Urited
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

- have been prepared In accordance with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescnbed by the Companies
Act 2008

In our opinion the Information given in the Cirectors’ Report for
the financial year for which the parent Company financial
staterments are prepared 1s consistent with the parent
Company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters

where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you If,

IN our opInIcN

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
Company, or retumns adequate for our audit have not been
receved from branches not wisited by us, or

- the parent Company financial statements are not in agreemeant
with the accounting records and returns, or

— ¢ertan disclosures of Directors’ remuneraton specified by law
are not made, or

-~ we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit.

QOther matter
We have reporied separately on the Group financial statements
of Walker Greenbank pic for the year ended 31 January 2012

6"/@\

QWEN MACKNEY

{SENIOR STATUTORY AUDITOR)

for and on behalf of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

St Albans

15 May 2012




66
WALKER GREENBANK PLC
Annual Report and Accounts 2012

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

AT 31 JANUARY 2012

2012

20M

Note £000 £O00

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 4 37 10
Investments 5 43,762 43,665

43,799 43,675
Current assets and labilities
Debtors 6 13,268 18,027
Cash at bank and m hand - 460

13,268 18,487
Craditors amounts falling due within one year 8 (6,124) (10,987
Net current assets 7,144 7,600
Total assets less current rabiliies 50,943 51,175
Creditors amounts faling due after more than one year 9 (1,800} (2.200}
Net assets 49,143 48,975
Caprital and reserves
Share capital 11 580 590
Share prarriurm account 12 457 457
Retaned earnings 12 6,208 6,040
Other reserves 12 41,838 41,888
Total shareholders' funds - 49,143 48975

The financial statements on pages 66 to 73 were approved by the Board of Directors on 156 May 2012 and were signed on its behalf by

JOHN SACH ALAN DIX
DIRECT DIRECTOR

Registered Number 61880
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Accounting policies

Accounting convention

The financial statements are prepared on a gaing concem basis and under the histoncal cost conventon They have been prepared in
accordance with applicable accountng standards and United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practce, with the Companies Act
2006 and with the accourting policies set out below which have been consistently applied to al penods presented unless otherwise indicated

Going concern

The Comparty mests its day to day working capital requirements through its bankang facities The Company’s forecasts and projections,
taking account of reasenably possible changes In trading performance show that the Company will be able to operate within the level of its
current facilities as disclosed in note @

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operatonal existence for the
foresesable future Therefore the Company continues to adopt the going concemn basis in prepanng its financial statements

Profit and loss account
No Profit and loss account is presented for Walker Greenbank PLC (‘the Company’) as # has applied the exemption provided by Section
408 of the Companies Act 2006

A profit of £733,000 (2011 loss of £745,000) has been dealt with In the financial statements of the Company

Consolidation

These financial statements presant nformation relating to the entity Walker Greenbank PLC and are not consolidated The consolidated
financial statements of Walker Greenbank PLC and s subsichanes {‘the Group’) of which the Company 1s the parent are separately
presented within this Annual Report and Financial Statements and are prepared in accordance with IFRS

Tangible fixed assets
Depreciation 1s charged on tangble fixed assets {excluding freehold land) on a straight-line basis on the onginal cost after deduction of any
estmated residual value The pnncipal annual rates are

Freehold buldings 2%

Short leasehold iImprovemenits Over the unexpired perod of the lease
Plant, equipment and vehicles Between 5% and 33%

Computer assets Between 12 5% and 33%

Land and buldings were stated at cost less any provision for mpament

impairment of tangible fixed assets and mvestments

Fixed assets and Investments are subyect 10 review for mpairment in accordance with FRS 11 Where impairment tnggers are identified

the recoverable amount of the relevant asset, or group of assets within an income generating unit, 1S determined, being the higher of value
N use and net realisable value Hf the camrying amount of the assat exceeds its recoverable amount an iImpaiment loss 1s calculated Any
impamant is recognised in the Profit and loss account in the year in which it occurs Where mparrments have been identified in pnor years
and recoverable amount was based on value in use, a2n updated discounted cash flow s prepared annually to assess whether the previous
impaiment in value has reversed When all conditions are met, the impairment 1s reversed and recogrised in the profit and loss in the year
in which the reversal ocours

Financial mstruments

The Compary is Isted on the Altermative Investrnent Market regulated by The London Stock Exchange It 1s not required to adopt FRS 26
‘Financal Instruments Measurernent’ or FRS 26 ‘Financial Instruments Drsclosures' n these financial statermants and has not elected 1o
valuntanly do so

The Company continues to adopt the amortised cost basis of accounting for financial nstruments and had not elected to voluntanly apply
farr value measurements of financial Instruments, including denvatve financial Instruments

Fareign currencies
Monetary assets and liabiites denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the Balance Sheet date

Transactons in foresgn cumencies are recorded at the rates ruling at the date of transacton All differences are taken to the Profit and loss account.

Further disclosure of the Group's financial nsk managemant policies I1s included In note 2 of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group which are separaiely presented from this Company's financial staternents

Employee share ownership plan ('ESOP’)
Where the Comparty’s 1ssued share caprtal i1s acquired by an ESOP trust sponsored by the Comparny the cost of acquisition 1s deducted
from the Profit and loss reserve In accordance with UITF Abstract 38
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1 Accounting policies continued

Employee benefits — share-based payments under long-term mcentive plans ("LTIPs’)

The Company 1ssues equity-settied share-based payments to certain employees of the Group which are measured at far value and are
recogrised as an expense in the Profit and lcss account with a corresponding increase in equity

The far values of these payments are measured at the dates of grant, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the awards
are granted The far value is recogrused over the penod duning which employees become conditionally entitied to the awards, subject to
the Group’s estmate of the number of awards which will lapse, erther due to employees leaving the Group pror 1o vesting or due to
non-market based performance condmions not being met The total amount recognised in the Profit and loss account as an expense 15
adjusted to reflect the actual number of awards that vest

National insurance contnbutions, related to the awards are recognised as an expense in the Profit and loss account with a comesponding
llability being recorded on the Balance Shest

The Company has applied the amendment to FRS 20 ‘Share-based payments - Group and treasury shares’ This 1s consistent with the
ragurements of UITF 44 which the Company adopted in previous years

Under these requirements a portion of the far value of awards granted to employees providing services to the Compary’s subsidiary
companies are recognised as an additonal investment in those subsidianies, and not as an expense of the Company

Employee benefits - pensions

The Walker Greenbank Group operates both defined benefit and defined contnbution pension schemaes for the benefit of its employees
Further details of these schemes are included In note 23 of the consolidated financial statements of the Group presented within therr Annual
Report and Financial Statements

Defined benefit pension schemes are accounted for within the separate financial statements of the Comparny’s trading subsidiary, Abans Holdings
Lrnited The Company recognises contributens to defined contnbution schermes in respect of its employees as expenses when incumed.,

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity Costs drrectly atinbutable to the issue of new ordinary shares are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds

Treasury shares
Consideration paid including any directly attnbutable incremerttal costs (net of Income taxes) on the purchass of the Company’s equrty share
capital (treasury shares) is deducted from equity attnbutable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued

Where such shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration recenved, net of any directly atinbutable ncremental transaction costs
and the related Income tax effects and is included in squity attnbutable to the Company’s equity shareholders

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation 1s recogrised in respect of tming differences that have onginated but not reversed at the Balance Sheet date and that give
nse to an oblgation to pay more tax or a nght to pay less tax in the future Deferred tax is calculated using the average rates that are expected
1o appty when the tming differences reverse, based on tax rates that have been substantively enacted by the Balarce Sheet date

No provision has been made for any liability ansing from the distnbution of past earnings of subsidiary undertakings

Deferred tax assets are only recogmised wheni it is rmore likely than not that they will ba recoverad In tha foreseeable future

Leases

Leases are classffied as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially alf the nsks and rewards of ownership to the
Company All other leases are classified as operating leases

Assets used by the Company which have been funded through finance leases are capitalised in tangible fixed assets and the resultting
lease obligations are included in labilmes The assets are depreciated over ther useful ives and the interest element of the rental obligations
1s charged 1o the Profit and loss account over the penod of the lease, and represents a constant proportion of the balance of capital
repayments outstanding

Operating lease rentals are charged to the Profit and loss account on a straight line basis over the period of the lease Rent free penods
recenvable on entenng an operating lease are released on a straight ine basis to the next break point in the lease

Cash flow statement and related party transactions

The Company has applied the exempticn avattable in FRS 8 and has decided not to disclose transactions with wholly owned
subsidiary undertakangs

In addihon, the Comparny has taken advantage of the examption from prepanng a cash flow statement under the terms of FRS 1

For detalls of other related party transactions see note 16




69

WALKER GREENBANK PLC
Annual Report and Accounts 2012

2 Auditors’ remuneration

2012 201
£000 £000
Audit fee - feas payable to the Company auditor for the audit of the parent Company and the consolidation
of the Group financial statements 50 50
3 Emeluments of Directors
Sub-otal
Aggregate 202 201
Selary Bonus LTIP Benafits  emoluments Penslon Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Executive Directors
John Sach 231 162 244 2 639 35 674 428
Dawvid Smalindge 183 128 174 1 486 27 513 310
Alan Dix 132 49 139 2 322 13 335 216
Non-executive Directors:
Terry Stannard g2 - - - 62 - 62 60
Fiona Geldsmith 27 - - - 27 - 27 27
635 339 557 5 1,536 75 1,611 1,041

In‘both years, retrement benefits were accruing to one Director under a defined benefit scheme, who 1s the highest paid Director Accrued
annual pension benefits at the year end were £11,570 (2011 £11,072)

Benefits are accruing under defined contribution schemes for three Directors (2011 thres Directors)

Further iInformation on the remuneration of the Directors 18 included n the Directors’” Remuneration Report which 1s Included on pages 26
{0 28 of the Group's Annual Report and Financia Statements

4 Tangible fixed assets

Plant,
egulprment Computer
anrd vehicles assets Total
£000 £000 £000

Cost
31 January 2011 50 20 70
Additions 35 2 37
31 January 2012 85 22 107
Depreciation
31 January 2011 41 19 60
Charge 9 1 10
31 January 2012 50 20 70

Net book amount
31 January 2012 35 2 a7

31 January 2011 9 0
5 Investments

2012 2011
Shares In subsidiary undertakings £000 £000
Cost
As at 1 February 2011 44,703 44,595
Additions 97 108
Disposal of subsidiary - -
As at 31 January 2012 44,800 44,703
Provision for impairment:
Beginning of year and end of year (1,038) (1,038)

Net book amount at 31 January 2012 and 2011 43,762 43,665
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5 Investments continued
Addmons in bath years relate to the application of the Company’s accounting policy on share-based payments under FRS 20

Walker Greenbank PLC is registered and domiciied in the United Kingdom 1t is the parent Comparny of the Walker Greenbank Group
The pnncipal operating comparnies that raded dunng the year, all of which are whelly owned, are as follows

Abans Holdings Limited - registered in England and Wales
Walker Gresnbank Inc® —Incorporated in the USA

Arthur Sanderson & Sons Inc” —Incorporated in the USA

Arthur Sanderson & Sons SARL — Incorporated in France

* Shares held by subsidiary company

Irvestmenits in Group companies are Ordinary shares

The pnncipal actvities of the Group are design, manufacture, marketing and distnbution of wallcovenngs, furrishing fabncs and assocrated
products for the consumer markat

The carrying value of the investment in Abans Holdings Limited 1s reviewed annually by reference to ts value in use to the Company The
value in use was calculated using future expected cash flow projections, dscounted at 6 57% (2011 735%) on a pre tax basis and 1s not
intended to reflect a realisable value on disposal

A full bst of subsidianes will be included with the next Annual Return of the Comipany

6 Debtoers
2012 2011
£000 £000
Amounts owed by substdiary undertakings 12,994 17,805
Other debtors 274 222

13,268 18,027

Amounts owed by subsidhary undertakings are non-intersst beanng and are unsecured These loans are repayable on demand by the
Company should payment be requirad, but full settlement within the next 12 months is unlikety to be sought

7 Disclosure of fair value of denvative financial mstruments

2012 201
£000 £000
Forward foreign exchange contracts — cash flow hedges - (labiltyl/asset (50) 63
Swap contract — cash flow hedges — asset 54 -

Forward foreign exchange contracts

The Group's US based subsidiary, Walker Greenbank Inc , sells products to local customers with sales invoiced in US dollars As the
Group's presentation currency Is sterling it 1S exposed to changes in the reported sterding value of these sales The Group considers that it
1s ughly probable that future sales of this nature will continue to anse over at least the next 12 months Dunng the year the Company has
entered into monthly forward foreign exchange contracts up to Jung 2013, with a third party, 1o buy stering and sell US dollars

The Group has designated these contracts as cash flow hedges of the foreign currency nsk ansing from the highly probable future forecast
sales fransactions

As at the reporting date forward exchange contracts with a notional principal of LiS$4 8 million {2011 US4 5 milion) are outstanding
The far value of the forward foreign confracts relating to the benefit on these anticipated future fransactions s a hability of £50,000
{2011 asset of £63,000)

Swap foreign exchange contracts

The Group uses swap contracts to manags its working capital exchange nsk from both the foreign subsidianes and the balances on
debtors, credrtors and cash held n foreign currency

The use of swaps are reviewad monthly and renewed when necessary

The swap contract held at the Balance Sheet date was reversed on 13 February 2012 There were no swap contracts held at the year
ended 31 January 2011
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8 Creditors due within one year

2012 2011

£000 £000
Bank term loans (note 9} 400 400
Bank overdrafts 86 -
Trade creditaors a3 70
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 4,410 9,256
Other taxes and sccial security 204 218
Other creditors 62 -
Accruals 869 1,043

6,124 10,887

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings are non-interest bearing and are unsecured These loans are payable on dermand by the
Company should payment be required, but full settlerment within the next 12 months 1s unlikely to be sought

9 Credttors due after more than one year

202 2011

£00C £000
Bank term loan 1,800 2,200
Interest 1s charged at 1 25% (2011 1 25%) over base rate
Repayment of total borrowings

2012 2011

£000 £000
Over five years 200 600
Between two and five years 1,200 1,200
Between one and two years 400 400
After more than one year 1,800 2,200
Within one year (note 8) 400 400

2,200 2,600

The Company has faciites from Barclays Bank PLC which compnses a vanable rate term loan secured on the Group's freehold property of
£4 0 mihon which 1s being repaid on a 10 year profile

Under the Barclays Bank PLC faciiies, the Group 1s subject to vanous financial covenants which apply 1o the term loan, including imterest
cover and delbt service

Any non-compliance with the covenants could, f not remedied or waived, constitute an event of default with respect to any such
arrangements

The Group has reported 1o Barclays Bank PLC that it was in full compliance with its financial and operaticnal covenants throughout each of
the periods presented

There Is a set off arrangement for Group bank accounts held with Barclays Bank PLC
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10 Deferred taxation
Potential deferred tax assets at 31 January 2012 of £1,328,000 (2011 £1,758,000) relating to tax losses and deductible termporary
differances have not been recogrised as it 1$ not considerad probable that recovery will anse

2012 2011
£000 £000
Tax losses 1,159 1,320
Other tming differences 169 439

1,328 1,759

There are also unutiised caprtal tax losses of £4,885,000 (2011 £4,885,000) but no deferred tax asset has been recognised as it 1s not
considered probable that these losses will be utiised

11 Share capital

Number
Ordinary shares of ip each of shares e
Authonsed share capital
1 February 2011 and 31 January 2012 85,000,000 850,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
1 February 2011 and 31 January 2012 59,006,162 590,062

Walker Greenbank's issuad ordinary share capital, with voting nghts, consists of 58,008,162 (2011 59,008,162) ordinary shares of which
960,000 (2011 960,000} ordinary shares ars held in treasury and a further 1,093,541 (2011 1,852,445) ordinary shares are held by the
Walker Greenbank PLC Employee Benefit Trust {EBT') with a cost of £224,638 2011 £380,534) and a market valus at 31 January 2012
of £565,807 (2011 £981,786} Shares held in treasury or by the EBT are treated as cancelled when calculating EPS

The total number of shares held in treasury at the ysar end represented 163% (2011 1 63%) of the issued ordinary shares The market
value of these shares at 31 January 2012 was £496,800 (2011 £508,800)

The shares held by the EBT and the treasury shares are held for the purpose of sabsfying awards under long-term ncentive plans to
Executive Directors and senior management

Long-Term Incentive Plans ('LTIPs’)

The Group operates a Long-Term Incentive Plan There have been five awards under this Plan, in which Executve Directors and sentor
management of the Group participate The LTIP has previously bean approved by the shareholders at an Annual General Mesting Further
detals are included n note 25 of the consolidated financial staterments of the Group which are separately included within this Arnual Report
and Financial Staterments

12 Shareholders' funds and reserve movements

Shars Profit

Share premium and loss Capital
caprtal account account raserve Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1 February 2010 590 457 6,838 41,888 49,773
Reserve for long-term incentive plans - - 493 - 493
Loss for the year - - (745) - (745)
Dividends paid - - (368) - (368)
Treasury shares - - {178) - (178}
31 January 2011 590 a57 6,040 41,888 48,975
Reserve for long-term incentive plans - - 5 - 5
Profit for the year - - 733 - 733
Dividends paid - - {570) - (570}
31 January 2012 590 457 6,208 41,888 49,143
Capital reserve represents £000

Capital redemption rassrva ansing on capital reconstructions 41,888
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13 Operating lease commitments
Annual commitments due under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

Land and Land and
bulidings Other bulldings Other
2012 2012 2011 2011
£000 £000 2000 £000
Operating lsases which expire
Within one year - - — -
Between cone and five years 87 - a6 -
Over five years 420 - 420 -
507 - 506 -

14 Contingent hability

The Company 1S party to a cross guarantes relating to the borrowings of its subsidiary Abans Holdings Lirnited under the funding

amangement with Barclays Bank PLC

15 Post balance sheet event

The Drrectors have recommended the payment of a final dvidend of 100p per share (2011 0 80p per share), a total of £571,537 (P01

£449,550) The shares held In Treasury or by the Employee Benefit Trust are excluded from receming dwidends 1n accordance with UK GAAP

16 Related party transactions

The Gompany made contnbirtions to the Walker Greenbank Group Personal Pension Plan of £101,000 for the year ended 31 January 2012

{2011 £74,000)
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FIVE YEAR RECORD

2008 2008 210 2c1 2012

£000 £o00 £000 £oo0 £000
Revenue 62,448 63,698 80,378 68,778 74,014
Overseas revenua by location of customer 20,908 22,672 20,409 22,456 25,441
Profit from operations 3,961 3,561 2,415 4,972 5,555
Profit from operations before exceptional items and discontinued operations 3,961 3,857 2,622 4,472 5,555
EBITDA 5,783 5,703 4,308 6,210 7,001
Profit before income tax 3,099 2,787 1,652 4,462 4,894
Capital expenditure 1,797 1,627 1,067 2,636 2,538
Earnings per ordinary share 14 49p 2 96p 2 i0p 5 36p 6 76p
Average number of employees 586 594 529 550 582
Dividends paid i year - - - 368 570
Sharsholders' funds 20,799 19,911 18,770 21,393 23,052
Dividend per share
— Final (prior year end) - paid - - - 0 50p 0.80p
— Intenm (current year end) - paid - - - 0 15p 0.20p
— Final (current year end} — proposed - - - - 1.00p

EBITDA 15 based on profit from operations before exceptional tems
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Financial Calendar

Annual General Meeting 27 June 2012
Announcement of half-year resutts October 2012
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